
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

2. ROLL CALL 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

4. ADDITIONS OR CORRECTIONS TO AGENDA 

5. DISCUSSION FROM THE FLOOR 

6. CONSENT AGENDA: 
A. Approval of Minutes – June 18, 2018 

B. Approval of Resolution 18-18 Permanently Transferring Monies From the General Fund 

to the Storm Sewer Rehab Fund and Revolving Construction Fund 

C. Approval of  Resolution 18-19 Permanently Transferring Monies From the General Fund 

to the 2018A GO Equipment Certificate Fund (City of Blaine) 

D. Contractor’s Licenses 

E. Correspondence 

7. PUBLIC WORKS REPORT 

8. CODE ENFORCEMENT REPORT 

9. ORDINANCES AND/OR RESOLUTIONS 

A.  Resolution 18-20 Approving A Variance To Allow A Driveway Expansion at 733 81st  

      Avenue NE 

B.  Resolution 18-21 Approving Preliminary And Final Plat For Public Storage SLP First  

      Addition 

C.  Resolution 18-22 Authorizing Circulation of the City of Spring Lake Park Draft 2040  

      Comprehensive Plan Update 

10. NEW BUSINESS 

A.  Approval of 2019 North Metro Telecommunications Commission Budget 

11. ENGINEER’S REPORT 

12. ATTORNEY’S REPORT 

13. REPORTS 

A.  Beyond the Yellow Ribbon Report 

14. OTHER 

A. Administrator Reports 

15. ADJOURN 

 

 

 

SEE REVERSE SIDE FOR RULES FOR PUBLIC HEARINGS AND  

DISCUSSION FROM THE FLOOR 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

MONDAY, JULY 2, 2018 

7:00 P.M. 

 
 



RULES FOR DISCUSSION FROM THE FLOOR 

AND PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

 

DISCUSSION FROM THE FLOOR 

 

 Discussion from the floor is limited to three minutes per person.  Longer presentations 

must be scheduled through the Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer’s office. 

 

 Individuals wishing to be heard must sign in with their name and address.  Meetings are 

video recorded so individuals must approach the podium and speak clearly into the 

microphone. 

 

 Council action or discussion should not be expected during “Discussion from the Floor.”  

Council may direct staff to research the matter further or take the matter under 

advisement for action at the next regularly scheduled meeting. 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

The purpose of a public hearing is to allow the City Council to receive citizen input on a 

proposed project.  This is not a time to debate the issue. 

 

The following format will be used to conduct the hearing: 

 

 The presenter will have a maximum of 10 minutes to explain the project as proposed. 

 

 Councilmembers will have the opportunity to ask questions or comment on the proposal. 

 

 Citizens will then have an opportunity to ask questions and/or comment on the project.  

Those wishing the comment are asked to limit their comments to 3 minutes.  In cases 

where there is a spokesperson representing a group wishing to have their collective 

opinions voiced, the spokesperson should identify the audience group he/she is 

representing and may have a maximum of 10 minutes to express the views of the group. 

 

 People wishing to comment are asked to keep their comments succinct and specific. 

 

 Following public input, Councilmembers will have a second opportunity to ask questions 

of the presenter and/or citizens. 

 

 After everyone wishing to address the subject of the hearing has done so, the Mayor will 

close the public hearing. 

 

 The City Council may choose to take official action on the proposal or defer action until 

the next regularly scheduled Council meeting.  No further public input will be received at 

that time. 



  OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS 

 

Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, the regularly scheduled meeting of the Spring Lake Park City Council 

was held on June 18, 2018 at the Spring Lake Park Community Center, 1301 81st Avenue N.E., at 7:00 P.M. 

 

1.  Call to Order 

 

Mayor Hansen called the meeting to order at 7:00 P.M. 

 

2.  Roll Call 

 

Members Present: Councilmembers Wendling, Delfs, Goodboe-Bisschoff and Mayor Hansen 

 

Members Absent: None 

 

Staff Present: Building Official Brainard; Police Chief Ebeltoft; Parks and Recreation Director 

Rygwall; Attorney Thames; Administrator Buchholtz and Executive Assistant 

Gooden  

 

Visitors: Peter Allen, Stantec 

 Paddy Jones, Ham Lake 

 Olivia Alveshere, ABC Newspaper 

         

3.  Pledge of Allegiance 

 

4.  Additions or Corrections to Agenda  

 

Administrator Buchholtz requested that Item 10 D., Osborne Road Trail Restoration – Phase 1, be added to the 

agenda.  

 

5.  Discussion From The Floor - None 

 

6.  Consent Agenda: 

 

Mayor Hansen reviewed the following Consent Agenda items: 

A. Approval of Minutes – June 4, 2018 

B. Disbursements 

 1. General Fund Disbursement Claim No.  18-09 -- $306,009.89 

 2. Liquor Fund Disbursement Claim No.    18-10 -- $  34,907.26 

C. Budget to Date/Statement of Fund Balance – May 2018 

D. 2nd Quarter Billing for 2019 Payable 2020 Property Tax Assessment – Ken Tolzmann 

E.   Poll Book Agreement 

F. Contractor’s Licenses 

G. Correspondence 

 

MOTION BY COUNCILMEMBER WENDLING APPROVING THE CONSENT AGENDA.  ROLL 

CALL VOTE:  ALL AYES.  MOTION CARRIED. 

 

 

 

 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 2 JUNE 18, 2018 

 

7.  Presentation 

 

A.  MS4 Permit Annual Report 

 

Mayor Hansen opened the public hearing at 7:09 PM. 

 

Peter Allen from Stantec presented the 2018 MS4 Annual review. He addressed the Council and provided a 

slide presentation that showed what an MS4 Permit consists of, as well as who is involved with the Storm 

Water Management Regulation in Spring Lake Park.  He stated that three groups regulate it: the State of 

Minnesota, Federal Programs and local watershed management organizations. 

 

Mr. Allen explained the Storm Water Regulatory Documents that impact municipal operations, which include: 

the NPDES MS4 Permit, Local Surface Water Management Plans and Watershed Management Plans and 

Rules. 

 

Mr. Allen reviewed the basic components of the MS4 Permit, known as “Best Management Practices”, or 

BMP’s. He stated that each BMP addresses one or more of the six main elements of the permit referred to as 

“Minimum Control Measures” which include public education and outreach; public participation and 

involvement; illicit discharge detection and elimination; construction site storm water runoff control; post 

construction storm water management and pollution prevention and good housekeeping for municipal 

operations. 

 

Mr. Allen reported on how Spring Lake Park is currently in compliance with the MS4 Permit. He stated that 

the City has formed partnerships with the Watershed Districts and other MS4’s, created City Ordinances and 

LWMP requirements, created Storm Sewer System Maps along with related brochures and articles, performed 

inspections on illicit discharge, construction and MS4 system, performed street sweeping, staff training; 

conducted a Facilities Inventory Assessment, Pond Assessment and completed the MS4 Annual reports to 

submit to the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency. 

 

Councilmember Nelson inquired if any unfunded mandates are going to take place. Mr. Allen stated that the 

EPA has been working on a new application and permitting process but at this time, it is not ready for cities to 

use. He stated that he hoped that the permit will be available later in the fall. 

 

Mayor Hansen asked for public comment. Hearing no further public comments, Mayor Hansen closed the 

public hearing at 7:20 PM. 

 

8. Police Report 

 

Police Chief Ebeltoft reviewed the May 2018 department statistics. 

 

Chief Ebeltoft reported that the Police Department responded to six hundred nineteen calls for service for the 

month of May 2018 compared to five hundred thirty one calls for service in May 2017. 

 

Chief Ebeltoft reported that Officer Chlebeck reported handling thirteen calls for service at the local schools in  

the month of May.  He stated that Officer Chlebeck conducted seven classroom presentations for the month 

and that he attended the Spring Lake Park High School Prom. 

 

Chief Ebeltoft reported that Investigator Baker reported handling a caseload of fifty three cases for the month 

of May 2018.  He stated that Investigator Baker noted that he has been able to reduce his current forfeiture 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 3 JUNE 18, 2018 

 

caseload to one case.  

 

Chief Ebeltoft reported, in addition to addressing the day-to-day operations of the Department, he attended 

numerous meetings throughout the month representing Spring Lake Park Police Department and the City of 

Spring Lake Park.  

 

Councilmember Nelson extended his sympathies to the City of Blaine Police Department for their loss of an 

officer and his wife.  Chief Ebeltoft reported that the Police Department would be assisting the Blaine Police 

Department during the memorial service and reported that he had extended sympathies on behalf the of the 

Police Department, City Council, the City and staff.  

 

9.  Parks and Recreation Report 

 

Parks and Recreation Director Rygwall reported that the Parks and Recreation Commission met and approved 

Gaga Ball for Terrace Park. She reported that the committee reviewed other new games for the parks. She 

reported that the Committee approved the lighting poles and style of the lights for Triangle Park.  

 

Ms. Rygwall reviewed the monthly department statistics and reported that staff has been preparing for Tower 

Days,  summer programs, softball schedules and starting to work on fall programs.  She reported that the raised 

garden beds are installed at Sanburnol Park and thanked the Public Works Department for building and 

installing the garden beds. 

 

Ms. Rygwall thanked the Public Works and Police Departments as well as the City Council for their assistance 

with Tower Days.  She stated that it was a very successful event.  

 

10.  New Business 

 

A. Naloxone-Narcan Deployment for Spring Lake Park Officers 

 

Police Chief Ebeltoft reported that the nation is in the midst of an unprecedented opioid epidemic. and many 

Law Enforcement Agencies around the county have starting issuing Naloxone/Narcan to their police officers 

on the basis of being able to potentially save the lives of those experiencing an opioid overdose or possibly 

save the lives of the police officer who may be accidentally exposed to synthetic opioid’s, such as fentanyl and 

cartfentanil. 

 

Chief Ebeltoft reported that by having Naloxone/Narcan deployed with the police officers, the Spring Lake 

Park Police Department will have the ability to more appropriately handle life threatening situations of opioid 

overdoses and officer accidental exposer incidents.  He stated that it will also provide the officers a temporary 

remedy for the citizens and officers to facilitate the necessary time for continued treatment at a medical facility.  

 

Chief Ebeltoft stated that he has done considerable research into the deployment of the Naloxone/Narcan for 

the Police Department.  He stated that there is a cost for the deployment, He explained that the officers will 

need to be trained in the administration of the Naloxone/Narcan, a standing doctor’s order will need to be 

obtained for the City to purchase and the officers to be able to administer the Naloxone/Narcan.  

 

Chief Ebeltoft stated that he was able to find a grant through the “Metropolitan Emergency Services Board” in 

St. Paul, Minnesota that would reimburse the cost of the purchase of the Naloxone/Narcan for a 4 mg dose at 

$37.50 per does or $75.00 for a twin pack.  He stated that the grant will not cover the cost for the officer training 

for administrating Naloxone/Narcan but can be covered by budgeted Police Department funds for training. He 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 4 JUNE 18, 2018 

 

stated that the grant is in effect until June 6, 2019. 

 

Chief Ebeltoft reported that he has been able to locate the required training for the Spring Lake Park Officers 

for the administration of Naloxone/Narcan through the Allina External Training and Education Department.  

He stated the training would be conducted at the Police Department and will be MN POST approved.  He 

reported that the cost for the training for all the Spring Lake Park Police Officers would be $418.00. He stated 

that the training would also provide the required “Doctor’s Standing Order” for the application of 

Naloxone/Narcan for the officers and would meet the statutory and grant requirements.   

 

Chief Ebeltoft stated that upon City Council approval of the deployment of Naloxone/Narcan for the Spring 

Lake Park Officers, he requests that the initial funds to facilitate this purchase be taken from Fund 428 (Traffic 

Education Fund) and budged Police training funds.  He stated that any reimbursement funds received from the 

grant would then replace money taken from the Fund 428. He stated he would then budget for 2019 the purchase 

of Naloxone/Narcan as needed and continue to utilize the grant as long as it is in existence. 

 

Chief Ebeltoft reported that it is his recommendation that every officer be assigned one twin pack of 

Naloxone/Narcan, one twin pack be purchased for the Evidence room and two twin packs be purchased for 

replacement after an officer uses theirs during the course of their duties. He stated that the Naloxone/Narcan 

has a “shelf life” of three years. 

 

 Reimbursed Amounts 

 Twin Pack Naloxone/Narcan - $75.00 x 11 (Officers)  $825.00 

 Twin Pack Naloxone/Narcan - $75.00 x   1 (Evidence Room) $  75.00 

 Twin Pack Naloxone/Narcan - $75.00 x   2 (Replacement)  $150.00 

 Total Expenditure                  $1,050.00 (Fund 428) 

 

 Not Reimbursed Amounts 

 Allina Training       $480.00 (Training Funds) 

 

 Combined Total      $1,468.00 

 

Chief Ebeltoft requested from the Mayor and City Council to institute the deployment of Naloxone/Narcan to 

Spring Lake Park Officers, to assist with providing the residents and officers with the necessary ability to help 

address the opioid epidemic and accidental exposers to officers. 

 

Councilmember Goodboe-Bisschoff inquired if any officers have been exposed to any opioid incidents. Chief 

Ebeltoft responded that they have not been however; other local agencies have encountered situations. 

 

Councilmember Goodboe-Bisschoff stated that the Minneapolis Police Department implemented the 

Naloxone/Narcan to their officers in April and she feels it is in best practice to see how that Department does 

with their implementation. She shared information that she had researched regarding the Naloxone/Narcan 

effects on a person it is administered to and the officer’s responsibilities.  She expressed a concern over the 

officer’s safety and the liability to the City. 

 

Chief Ebeltoft stated that the officers will be trained by Allina in a two-hour training. He stated that per state 

statute there is no liability on the City for an officer deploying Narcan. He stated that the officers will be given 

a standing doctors order that will allow the deployment of Narcan. He explained that the Naloxone/Narcan is 

a drug that were it administered to a person was not suffering from a drug overdose, there would not be any 

negative side effects. He stated that the Naloxone/Narcan is distributed through a nasal inhalant.  



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 5 JUNE 18, 2018 

 

 

Councilmember Goodboe-Bisschoff inquired if all the Spring Lake Park Officers are in favor of the deployment 

of Naloxone/Narcan. Chief Ebeltoft explained several officers have inquired when the Department would be 

receiving the Naloxone/Narcan to have a tool to help save a life if they are put in a situation where it is needed. 

He stated that he would not ask or implement anything onto his officers in which he would not be comfortable 

doing himself.   

 

Councilmember Nelson stated that he is in full support of the deployment. He stated that if it had been available 

years ago, there would still be many lives that would have been saved. 

 

Councilmember Delfs reminded the Council that the Police Department are the first responders on a call and 

they are putting their lives in danger on any type of call. He thanked Chief Ebeltoft for finding the funding for 

the deployment and the research that he has done.  He expressed that he feels this is a very important tool that 

is necessary for the officers to do their job and he commends any agency who is implementing a similar 

deployment.   

 

Mayor Hansen thanked Chief Ebeltoft for researching and applying for the grant. 

 

MOTION MADE BY MAYOR HANSEN TO APPROVE NALOXONE/NARCAN DEPLOYMENT FOR 

SPRING LAKE PARK POLICE DEPARTMENT OFFICERS. ROLL CALL VOTE: COUNCILMEMBERS 

NELSON-AYE; WENDLING-AYE; DELFS-AYE; MAYOR HANSEN-AYE AND COUNCILMEMBER 

GOODBOE-BISSCHOFF – NAY. MOTION CARRIED. 

  

B.  Torg Brewery SAC/WAC Deferral 

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that Torg Brewery, LLC has filed an application with the City to defer the 

SAC and WAC fees associated with the repurposing of the property located at 8421 University Avenue NE for 

a brewery and taproom business. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz stated that the City Council approved entering into the Master SAC Deferral 

Agreement with the Metropolitan Council to defer the Sewer Availability Charges (SAC) owed to MCES.  He 

stated that the City Council also implemented a similar program to defer payment of the City’s Water 

Availability Charges (WAC).  

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that the Metropolitan Council Environmental Services (MCES) determined 

that the new use will result in 10 new local SAC units. He stated that the City determined that the new use will 

result in 10 new local WAC units. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that the MCES charges from the project are $24,850 for SAC.  He stated that 

the City charges are $10,500 for WAC and $850 for Local SAC. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz explained that the deferral project requires the property owner to pay 20% of the 

charges upfront and to defer the remaining 80% of the charges over a period of 10 years at an interest rate as 

determined by the MCES policy. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz stated that staff has drafted an agreement between Torg Brewery, LLC, building 

owner Gordon Lee Properties, LLC and the City outlining the arrangement. He stated that if the owner is in 

default, the owner defaults the right to appeal the City’s assessment of the unpaid balance against the property. 

He stated that if the the business ceases operation before the 10 year period is up, there will be no further 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 6 JUNE 18, 2018 

 

changes upon notification to MCES. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz stated that staff recommends approval of the proposed deferral agreement and 

reported that Attorney Thames had reviewed the agreement.  

 

MOTION MADE BY MAYOR HANSEN TO APPROVE TORG BREWERY SAC/WAC DEFERRAL 

AGREEMENT. ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL AYES. MOTION CARRIED. 

 

C.  Triangle Park Lighting 

 

Parks and Recreation Director Rygwall reported that the scheduled park improvements at Triangle Park 

continue to make progress.  She reported that the sidewalk expansion has been completed and paid for by 

Dominium.  She explained that per the construction agreement, Dominium will also be paying for four of the 

10 light poles that will be installed to provide sidewalk lighting in the park.   

 

Ms. Rygwall reported that the Parks and Recreation Committee has reviewed the various pole and luminary 

options and made their recommendation.  She stated that the project is now ready for the scheduling of the 

lighting installation. She reported that she requested a quote from Eagle Builders (Dominium Project) and Aid 

Electric who does a majority of the park electrical work. 

 

Ms. Rygwall provided the following quotes: 

 

 Medina Electric (Eagle Builders)   $20,417.50 

 Aid Electric     $15,700.00 

 

Ms. Rygwall stated that staff recommends Aid Electric to install and connect the 10 light poles at Triangle Park 

in the amount of $15,700.00 with funds from the Park Acquisition and Improvement Fund. 

 

Councilmember Wendling inquired what amount Dominium was paying for per the agreement. Administrator 

Buchholtz explained that Dominium will be paying for the acquisition and installation of the four poles. 

 

Councilmember Nelson inquired if the style of lights will be available long term should additional lighting need 

to be added.  Ms. Rygwall stated that the 10 poles will provide adequate lighting and in the future, a gazebo 

could be added with a single light inside of it.   

 

Public Works Director Randall explained that he is requesting the electrical contractors put “T” connection in 

the piping to allow for easy connection of the future gazebo light.  

 

MOTION MADE BY COUNCILMEMBER NELSON TO APPROVE AID ELECTRIC TO PERFORM 

ELECTRICAL WORK AT TRIANGLE PARK IN THE AMOUNT OF $15,700.00. ROLL CALL VOTE: 

ALL AYES. MOTION CARRIED. 

 

D.  Osborne Road Trail Restoration 

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that Engineer Gravel contracted three firms – Astech Corporation, Fahrner 

Asphalt, and Struck and Irwin Paving Inc. to solicit quotes for the Phase I of the Osborne Road Trail 

Restoration.  He stated that one firm; Struck and Irwin Paving, Inc. submitted a quote for the work. 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that the quote from Struck and Irwin Paving is as follows: 

      



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 7 JUNE 18, 2018 

 

     Quote    Engineer’s Estimate 

 Osborne Road Trail  $11,555.00   $12,000.00 

 Old Central Avenue Trail $10,399.50   $12,000.00 

 TOTAL   $21,954.50   $24,000.00 

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that staff recommends awarding the project to Struck and Irwin Paving, Inc. 

in the amount of $21,954.50, with proceeds coming from the Revolving Construction fun (Fund 400). He stated 

that the quote is below the Engineer’s estimate of $24,000.  

 

Mayor Hansen inquired if the City was familiar with the contractor.  Administrator Buchholtz reported that 

Engineer Gravel has worked with the contractor in other cities.  Public Works Director Randall stated that the 

contractor typically does airport runways and is certain that they will do a good job. 

 

MOTION MADE BY MAYOR HANSEN TO APPROVE STRUCK AND IRWIN PAVING, INC. FOR 

OSBORNE ROAD TRAIL RESTORATION – PHASE 1 IN THE AMOUNT OF $21,954.50. ROLL CALL 

VOTE: ALL AYES. MOTION CARRIED. 

 

11. Engineer’s Report  

 

Engineer Gravel was absent from the meeting however, his report was included in the Council packet. 

 

Councilmember Wendling inquired on a correspondence item regarding the Radium levels water report.   

Public Works Director Randall explained that results from a water test showed that there was a higher level of 

Radium in the water than previous tests.  He stated that changes have been made to the chemical levels, the 

mixing chambers and water lines have since been thoroughly cleaned. He reported that the water will be tested 

again in the next few weeks.  He stated that the City has been doing everything possible to correct the high 

level and noted that the levels recorded are not any danger to residents. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz stated that the required Radium levels have dropped over the past 10 years and the 

required amount was much higher than what is required now.  He stated that a notice to the residents will be 

mailed with their next utility bill.  

 

12.  Attorney’s Report  

 

Attorney Thames reported that contracts for the 2018 Sanitary Sewer Project are almost completed. He reported 

that property that was reassessed for the Arthur Street Improvement project has re-appealed their new 

assessment. Attorney Thames reported that he has filed for a summary judgment on behalf of the City. He 

stated that the hearing will take place next month.  

 

13.  Reports - None 

 

14.   Administrator Reports 

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that the Sunset Grill opened on Monday, June 18, 2018. He reported that the 

2019 budget process has started and department meetings will start next week. 

 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that the North Suburban Hospital District will be closing on the property 

with Allina very soon and the land transfer should then take place in late summer. 

 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 8 JUNE 18, 2018 

 

Councilmember Goodboe-Bisschoff inquired if it was known that a Phase I or environmental inspection had 

been done on the 525 Osborne property.  Administrator Buchholtz stated that he would check with the Hospital 

District on the status of a Phase I inspection.  

 

15.  Other 

 

Councilmember Nelson reported that on July 9, 2018, the Beyond the Yellow Ribbon would be hosting a 

hamburger and hot dog event at 5:00 PM at Kraus-Hartig VFW.  

 

16.  Adjourn 

 

MOTION BY COUNCILMEMBER WENDLING TO ADJOURN.  VOICE VOTE:  ALL AYES.  MOTION 

CARRIED. 

 

The meeting was adjourned at 8:09 PM. 

 

                   

         __________________________________ 

          Cindy Hansen, Mayor  

Attest: 

 

__________________________________________ 

Daniel R. Buchholtz, Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer 



 
Memorandum 
To:   Mayor Hansen and Members of the City Council 

From:  Daniel R. Buchholtz, MMC, Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer 

Date:  June 27, 2018 

Subject: Transfer Resolutions 
 
Included on the consent agenda for the City Council’s consideration are two resolutions 
transferring funds from the City’s General Fund to three funds. 
 
Resolution 18-18 transfers surplus funds from the City’s General Fund to two funds – the 
Revolving Construction Fund and the Storm Sewer Rehab Fund.  The transfer to the Revolving 
Construction Fund will assist the City in buying down the 2019 property tax levy by using surplus 
funds from the 2017 budget to buy down the cost of the SBM Fire Department’s capital budget.  
The transfer to the Storm Sewer Rehab Fund will provide funds to the City Council to fund a 
future storm water improvement project that will be identified in the Storm Water Management 
Plan being completed by Stantec to address chronic flooding issues within the community.  The 
effective date of the transfers is December 31, 2017. 
 
Resolution 18-19 transfers surplus funds from the City’s General Fund to a debt service fund that 
has been established for the recently approved 2018A Equipment Certificate issued by the City of 
Blaine to facilitate the purchase of a second ladder truck for SBM Fire Department.  The 
resolution transfers $106,000 into the debt service fund to buy down future levies for the 
repayment of this Equipment Certificate.  The effective date of the transfer will be July 2, 2018. 
 
The 2017 budget had a sizable surplus due to one-time revenues from building permits and plan 
review fees.  Staff is proposing utilizing these funds to buy down future debt levies, making levy 
increases smaller into the future. 
 
The General Fund will still have ___% of expenses in reserves, which is still in compliance with 
the City’s fund balance policy. 
 
Staff recommends approval of the two resolutions.  If you have any questions, please don’t hesitate 
to contact me at 763-784-6491. 
 
 





RESOLUTION NO. 18-18 

 

RESOLUTION PERMANENTLY TRANSFERRING MONIES FROM THE GENERAL 

FUND TO THE STORM SEWER REHAB FUND AND REVOLVING CONSTRUCTION 

FUND 

 

 WHEREAS, the annual audit of the City’s 2017 financial records was conducted in 2018; 

and 

 

 WHEREAS, the preliminary audited financial statements for year ended December 31, 

2017 indicate that the City experienced a surplus in the general fund; and 

 

 WHEREAS, these funds would typically remain in the General Fund as cash carried 

forward, increasing the City’s operating reserves unless otherwise designated by the City Council; 

and 

 

 WHEREAS, interfund transfers are needed to cover a number of needs, including storm 

water improvements and fire department capital improvements; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the remaining fund balance in the General Fund will comply with the City’s 

fund balance policy of maintaining between 35%-50% of the budgeted expenditures in reserves. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Spring 

Lake Park that the Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer is hereby authorized to make the transfers 

specified below: 

  

Fund 101 – General Fund to Fund 425 – Storm Sewer Rehab Fund $100,000 

Fund 101 – General Fund to Fund 400 – Revolving Construction Fund $  35,000 

 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the effective date of the transfers is December 31, 

2017. 

 

 

 

The foregoing Resolution was moved for adoption by  . 

 

Upon Vote being taken thereon, the following voted in favor thereof:. 

 

And the following voted against the same:   

  

  



 

Whereon the Mayor declared said Resolution duly passed and adopted the 2nd day of July, 2018. 

 

 

APPROVED BY: 

 

___________________________________ 

Cindy Hansen, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

Daniel R. Buchholtz, City Administrator  



RESOLUTION NO. 18-19

RESOLUTION PERMANENTLY TRANSFERRING MONIES FROM THE GENERAL 

FUND TO THE 2018A GO EQUIPMENT CERTIFICATE FUND (CITY OF BLAINE) 

WHEREAS, the annual audit of the City’s 2017 financial records was conducted in 2018; 

and 

WHEREAS, the preliminary audited financial statements for year ended December 31, 

2017 indicate that the City experienced a surplus in the general fund; and 

WHEREAS, these funds would typically remain in the General Fund as cash carried 

forward, increasing the City’s operating reserves unless otherwise designated by the City Council; 

and 

WHEREAS, funds are presently available to set aside for the repayment of the City’s 

obligation under the 2018A GO Equipment Certificates of Indebtedness, Series 2018A, issued by 

the City of Blaine for the purchase of a 2nd quint for the SBM Fire Department; and 

WHEREAS, the remaining fund balance in the General Fund will comply with the City’s 

fund balance policy of maintaining between 35%-50% of the budgeted expenditures in reserves. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Spring 

Lake Park that the Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer is hereby authorized to make the transfers 

specified below: 

Fund 101 – General Fund to Fund 333 – 2018A GO Equipment 

Certificate (City of Blaine) 

$106,000 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the effective date of the transfer is the date of this 

Resolution. 

The foregoing Resolution was moved for adoption by  . 

Upon Vote being taken thereon, the following voted in favor thereof:. 

And the following voted against the same:  



 

Whereon the Mayor declared said Resolution duly passed and adopted the 2nd day of July, 2018. 

 

 

APPROVED BY: 

 

___________________________________ 

Cindy Hansen, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

Daniel R. Buchholtz, City Administrator  



State of Minnesota    )     

Counties of Anoka and Ramsey ) ss 

City of Spring Lake Park   )  

 

I, Daniel R. Buchholtz, duly appointed and qualified City Clerk in and for the City of Spring 

Lake Park, Anoka and Ramsey Counties, Minnesota, do hereby Certify that the foregoing is a 

true and correct copy of Resolution No. 18-19, A Resolution Permanently Transferring Monies 

From The General Fund To The 2018A GO Equipment Certificate Fund (City of Blaine), 

adopted by the Spring Lake Park City Council at their regular meeting on the 2nd day of July, 

2018.   

 

 

 

 (SEAL)            

              Daniel R. Buchholtz, Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer 

 

       

                   Dated:        

 

 





















































RESOLUTION NO. 18-20 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A VARIANCE TO ALLOW A DRIVEWAY 

EXPANSION AT 733 81ST AVENUE NE 

 

 

WHEREAS, Keith Meyers, 733 81st Avenue NE, have made application to expand this 

driveway into the required five foot setback by constructing a 10 foot by 48 foot extension of the 

existing driveway on the west side of his property; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the property is legally described as follows: 

 

 Lot 13, Block 2 South Hampton Addition 

 

WHEREAS, mailed and published notice of a public hearing to consider the proposed 

variance was given; and 

 

 WHEREAS, a public hearing to consider the proposed variance was held on June 25, 

2018; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the request was made for expansion of an existing driveway to be constructed 

within 1.0 feet of the property line, which is less than the required five foot side yard setback 

(Section 153.132 of the Spring Lake Park Zoning Code); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has considered the application against the practical 

difficulties test as outlined in Section 153.224 of the Spring Lake Park Zoning Code; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has recommended approval subject to reasonable 

conditions; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Spring Lake Park City Council has reviewed the application and hereby 

accepts the findings and recommendation of the Spring Lake Park Planning Commission. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Spring 

Lake Park, Minnesota that the City Council hereby approves the request of Keith Meyers for a 

variance allowing the expansion of the driveway within the required five foot side yard setback 

subject to the following conditions: 

 

1. The wooden fence between the applicant’s property and the property to the west shall 

remain in place, or similar screening, for the new parking area from neighboring 

properties. 

2. All recreational vehicles will be parked at the rear of the proposed driveway extension. 

3. Additional information about proposed drainage improvements shall be submitted to 

the Public Works Director for review prior to construction. 

 

 



The foregoing Resolution was moved for adoption by Councilmember. 

 

Upon Vote being taken thereon, the following voted in favor thereof:  

 

And the following voted against the same:. 

 

 

 

Whereon the Mayor declared said Resolution duly passed and adopted the 2nd day of July, 2018. 

 

 

APPROVED BY: 

 

___________________________________ 

Cindy Hansen, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

Daniel R. Buchholtz, City Administrator 

 

 



Memo 

 

 

  

To: Planning Commission  From: Phil Carlson, Katrina Nygaard 

 City of Spring Lake Park  Stantec 

File: Staff Report for 733 81st Ave Driveway Date: June 20, 2018 

 

Reference: 733 81st Ave NE Driveway Variance   

733 81ST AVE NE | DRIVEWAY VARIANCE APPLICATION 

Keith Meyers (applicant) has submitted a variance application for the extension of a driveway at his property: 733 81st 

Avenue NE. The application was filed on May 22, 2018 to the City of Spring Lake Park. This staff report identifies the 

background information about the property, provides an analysis of the proposed improvement, identifies issues and 

concerns with the proposed improvement, and includes a recommendation that the planning commission may approve or 

deny the variance application.  

BACKGROUND 

The applicant has submitted a request for a variance at 733 81st Ave NE to allow for the extension of his driveway along 

the western edge of the property, 1-foot off the property line, within the required 5-foot side-yard setback. The applicant 

states that this improvement will increase parking for cars and recreational vehicles on the site, increase property values, 

and improve drainage. The property is a 9,956 square-foot residential site, along 81st Ave NE (Figure 1).  Currently, the 

site includes a single-family home, metal shed, and driveway. The property is fenced on three sides, the west and north 

side are fenced with a wood privacy fence and the east side is fenced with a chain-link fence. Neighboring properties are 

also single-family residential homes.  

The property is zoned R-1 Single Family Residential and guided Low Density Residential on the 2030 Future Land Use 

Plan. The proposed driveway extension (off-street parking) is an allowed accessory use in the R-1 district and is 

consistent with the Comprehensive Plan (Figures 2 and 3). 

 

Figure 1: Project Area 



June 20, 2018 

Planning Commission  

Page 2 of 6  

Reference: 733 81st Ave NE Driveway Variance   

  

 

Figure 2: Zoning 

 

 

Figure 3: 2030 Future Land Use 

 



June 20, 2018 

Planning Commission  

Page 3 of 6  

Reference: 733 81st Ave NE Driveway Variance   

  

ANALYSIS 

Variance Application 

Section §153.224 of the City of Spring Lake Park’s zoning code outlines the purpose and process to approve a variance. 

This driveway extension application has been analyzed with respect to those requirements, listed below. It is important to 

note that a variance may be approved with conditions.  

Standards include: 

 “Actions will be in harmony with the general purposes and intent of this title” 

The driveway is a standard feature on residential properties for off street parking. The wood fence would screen the view 

of automobiles from neighboring property owners.  

“Variances are consistent with the Comprehensive Plan” 

The Comprehensive Plan guides this property as low density residential, which is the current use. A driveway is an 

accessory use to a residential use and is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan guidance. 

“The variance, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality” 

The area is a residential neighborhood, with each property owner having access to the roadway through a driveway. The 

proposed improvement is consistent with the character of the neighborhood. While the extension would result in a much 

larger paved area, the fencing along the west and north sides of the property would protect views from neighboring 

properties. The neighboring property owner has signed a letter stating that they have no concern with the proposed 

driveway extension. 

“Economic considerations alone do not constitute practical difficulties” 

The applicant does not cite economic considerations as a primary reason to extend the driveway into the side-yard 

setback. However, they argue that the larger parking area will increase property values. 

A variance will be granted “only in instances where their strict enforcement would cause practical difficulties in 

complying with the official control because of circumstances unique to the individual property under 

consideration”.  

The parcel is standard width and length and includes no wetlands or waterbodies, and therefore there are no unique 

challenges or circumstances on the parcel. The placement of the existing home 10 feet from the side lot line, however, 

means there is no way to place a typical 6- of 7-foot wide vehicle on that side of the house and still meet the 5-foot side 

yard setback. This could be considered a practical difficulty. 

  



June 20, 2018 

Planning Commission  

Page 4 of 6  

Reference: 733 81st Ave NE Driveway Variance   

  

Off-Street Parking Standards 

Section §153.132 of the City of Spring Lake Park’s zoning code outlines specific requirements for off-street parking 

facilities, including driveways, in the city. Those requirements are listed below and have informed the recommendations 

outlined later in this report.   

“Off-street parking and loading facilities shall be subject to the front yard, side yard, and rear yard regulations for 

the use district in which the parking is located, with the following exceptions. 

(A)   In any of the residence districts, no parking or loading space shall be located within 15 feet of any property 

line. Driveways, garages, and carports in conjunction with any single- or two-family residence shall be exempted 

from this requirement; however, they shall not be located less than five feet from the property line, except by 

variance obtained in the manner provided in this code.” 

RECREATIONAL VEHICLE PARKING STANDARS 

Section §153.066.B.2 of the City of Spring Lake Park’s zoning code outlines specific requirements for off-street parking of 

recreational vehicles. Those requirements are listed below and have informed the recommendations outlined later in this 

report.   

“(b) The following recreational vehicles, trailers and boats may be parked or stored on a lot in the R-1 district and 

may be parked or stored by a tenant only in the R-2 and R-3 districts, provided they are not used or occupied for 

living, sleeping, housekeeping, or business purposes, and provided they are parked or stored so as to meet the 

following criteria: 

1.   One recreational vehicle may be parked within the front yard setback provided that the vehicle may 

not be parked closer than five feet to the side yard property line except by variance granted pursuant to 

this code, and then only upon an approved driveway; 

2.   Travel trailers, pickup coaches, motorized homes, and camping trailers, constructed as temporary 

dwellings for travel purposes, not exceeding 300 square feet; and 

3.   Boats and trailers not exceeding 30 feet in length. 

(c)   Any recreational vehicle, trailer or boat may be parked anywhere on the premises for temporary loading or 

unloading purposes.” 

  



June 20, 2018 

Planning Commission  

Page 5 of 6  

Reference: 733 81st Ave NE Driveway Variance   

  

ISSUES AND CONCERNS 

Through the review of the application for the proposed driveway extension, the City identified numerous potential issues. 

These issues are summarized below. 

Practical Difficulty and Unique Circumstances 

As stated earlier in this staff report, the applicant is requesting a variance to locate their new driveway extension within the 

required 5-foot setback from the western property line. While his existing driveway is located within this area, it is exempt 

from the regulation since it was a pre-existing feature on the site. 

The site is a standard length and width and does not include any unique conditions such as steep slopes or wetlands that 

could be considered a practical difficulty for construction of the driveway extension elsewhere on the property. 

The one potential difficulty that the property owner faces is that the house is currently set back approximately ten feet from 

the western property line, allowing only five feet of pavement under the existing code requirements. Five feet is not 

sufficiently wide to park a car or recreational vehicle.  

Existing Parking Areas 

The applicant currently has a driveway (over 400 square feet) located in the southwestern portion of their property and a 

one-car garage attached to their home. Based on city code requirements, they meet current parking requirements.   

Existing Screening 

The applicant currently has a wooden fence along the western and northern boundary of their property, adjacent to the 

proposed driveway extension. Views of the parking area from neighboring property owners will be minimized because of 

the fence. 

Parking Recreational Vehicles 

As stated earlier in the staff report, the driveway extension may be used to park automobiles or other recreational vehicles 

or boats. The code supports the storage of these vehicles on residential property as long as they meet the required 5-foot 

side-yard setback. The location of these vehicles on the lot is not explicitly stated, but it is standard practice to 

recommend parking out of the front yard area.  

Neighbor Support 

The applicant has included a letter of support for the project from their neighbor, Mike Agerbeck (725 81st Ave NE). The 

letter states that “I have no concern with Keith’s new driveway extension 10’x48’ next to the property line that we share”. 

The letter is signed by both property owners and dated May 22, 2018. 

Drainage 

The applicant states that drainage will be improved on site through the installation of the driveway extension. However, no 

documentation is included in their variance application to support this claim.   



June 20, 2018 

Planning Commission  

Page 6 of 6  

Reference: 733 81st Ave NE Driveway Variance   

  

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that Planning Commission recommend to the City Council approval of the application for a variance to 

allow a driveway extension with the following conditions: 

1. The wooden fence between the applicant’s property and the property to the west remain in place, or similar 

screening, for the new parking area from neighboring properties. 

2. All recreational vehicles will be parked at the rear of the proposed driveway extension. 

3. Additional information about proposed drainage improvements be submitted to the Public Works Director for review 

prior to construction. 

 

STANTEC CONSULTING SERVICES INC. 

Katrina Nygaard 
Planner 
 
Phone: (425) 289-7374 

Katrina.Nygaard@stantec.com 

 

 

 

 

 



















DRAFT PROCEEDINGS 
 
Minutes of the Spring Lake Park Planning Commission regularly scheduled meeting held on June 25, 2018 
at the Spring Lake Park Community Center, 1301 81st Avenue N.E., at 7:00 P.M. 
 
1.  Call to Order 
 
Chairperson Hansen called the meeting to order at 7:00 P.M. 
 
2.  Roll Call 
 
Members Present: Commissioners Smith, Bernhagen, Eischens, Cobbs, Dircks and Hansen  
 
Members Absent: None 
 
Staff Present: Planner Carlson; Administrator Buchholtz and Executive Assistant 

Gooden 
 
Visitors:   Councilmember Delfs 
    Barbara Goodboe-Bisschoff, Spring Lake Park 
    Paddy Jones, Ham Lake 
    Keith Meyers, 733 81st Avenue NE    
   
3.  Pledge of Allegiance 
 
4.  Approval of Minutes – May 29, 2018 
 
MOTION BY COMMISSIONER BERNHAGEN, SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER SMITH, 
APPROVING THE MINUTES OF MAY 29, 2018.  ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL AYES.  MOTION 
CARRIED. 
 
5.  Public Hearing – Approval of Driveway Variance – 722 81st Avenue NE 
 
Planner Carlson reported that the City received an application for a variance at 733 81st Avenue NE to allow 
for the extension of a driveway along the western edge of the property, one foot of the property line, within 
the required five foot side yard setback. He reported that the applicant stated this improvement will increase 
parking for cars and recreational vehicles on the site, increase property values, and improve drainage.   He 
reported that the property is a 9,956 square-foot residential site, along 81st Avenue NE.  He stated that 
currently the site site includes a single-family home, metal shed and driveway.  He reported that the property 
is fenced on three sides, the west and north side are also fenced with a wood privacy fence and the east side 
is fenced with a chain-link fence.   He stated the property is zoned R-1 Single Family Residential and guided 
Low Density Residential in the 2030 Future Land Use Plan. 
 
Mr. Carlson reported that the site is standard length and width and does not include any unique conditions 
such as steep slopes or wetlands that could be considered a practical difficulty for construction of the 
driveway extension elsewhere on the property. 
 
Mr. Carlson stated that the one potential difficulty that the property owner faces is that the house is currently 
set back approximately 10 feet from the western property line, allowing only five feet of pavement under 
the existing code requirements.  He stated that five feet is not sufficiently wide to park a car or recreational 
vehicle. He explained that the Code supports the storage of these vehicles on residential property as long 



DRAFT PROCEEDINGS PAGE 2 June 25, 2018 
 
as they meet the required five-foot side-yard setback.  He stated that the location of these vehicles on the 
lot is not explicitly stated, but it is standard to practice to recommend parking out of the front yard area. 
 
Mr. Carlson stated that the applicant has included a letter of support from the neighbor and it states that 
there are no concerns with the extension next to the property line that the neighbors share. Mr. Carlson 
reported that the applicant states that drainage will be improved on the site through the placement of a curb 
along the driveway extension.  
 
Mr. Carlson stated that staff recommends that the Planning Commission recommend to the City Council 
approval of the application for a variance to allow a driveway extension with the following conditions:  
 
1.  The wooden fence between the applicant’s property and the property to the west remain in place, or  
      similar screening, for the new parking area from neighboring properties. 
 
2.  All recreation vehicles will be parked at the rear of the proposed driveway expansion. 
 
3.  Additional information about proposed drainage improvements will be submitted to the Public Works  
     Director for review prior to construction. 
 
Keith Meyers, 733 81st Avenue NE, stated that the expansion will help with the drainage issues along his 
garage and the curb that will be added will allow the water to flow away from the neighboring property.  
 
Commissioner Eischens stated that it appeared that the applicant has a good relationship with the 
neighboring properties.  Mr. Meyers stated that the neighbors are comfortable with the project and he has 
a great relationship with them. 
 
Commissioner Smith stated that he wanted to make sure that if the variance is granted to the applicant, the 
neighbors and applicant understand that the variance is allowing for a permanent change to the property. 
Planner Carlson stated that a variance runs with the land and this would place conditions on the land for 
future improvements. 
 
Chairperson Hansen opened the public hearing at 7:15 PM. There was no discussion from the floor. 
Chairperson Hansen closed the public hearing at 7:15 PM.  
 
MOTION MADE BY COMMISSIONER SMITH, SECOND BY EISCHENS TO RECOMMEND 
APPROVAL OF DRIVEWAY VARIANCE AT 733 81ST AVENUE NE WITH THE FOLLOWING 
CONDITIONS: 1. THE WOODEN FENCE BETWEEN THE APPLICANTS PROPERTY AND THE 
PROPERTY TO THE WEST REMAIN IN PLACE, OR SIMILAR SCREENING, FOR THE NEW 
PARKING AREA FROM NEIGHBORING PROPERTIES; 2. ALL RECREATIONAL VEHICLES WILL 
BE PARKED AT THE REAR OF THE PROPOSED DRIVEWAY EXPANSION; 3. ADDITIONAL 
INFORMATION ABOUT THE PROPOSED DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS BE SUBMITTED TO 
THE PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR FOR REVIEW PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION. ROLL CALL VOTE: 
ALL AYES. MOTION CARRIED. 
 
6.  Public Hearing- Approval of Preliminary Plat as a condition of the site plan approval for redevelopment  
     of a portion of the Public Storage property at 7808 Highway 65 NE 
 
Planner Carlson reported that the City Council has reviewed and approved the Site Plan earlier this year for 
Public Storage located at 7807 Highway 65 NE. He stated that one of the conditions of approval was the 
submission of a plat for the property.  He stated that the applicants have submitted a Preliminary Plat to be 
named Public Storage SLP First Addition. 



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK, MINNESOTA 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 18-21 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING PRELIMINARY AND FINAL PLAT FOR  

PUBLIC STORAGE SLP FIRST ADDITION 

 

WHEREAS, Galloway & Company, on behalf of property owner Secure Mini Storage 

Limited Partnership (Public Storage), (“Applicant”) has submitted an application for preliminary 

and final plat to plat land located at 7807 Highway 65 in the City of Spring Lake Park; and 

 

WHEREAS, the proposed subdivision is located on a parcel approximately 6.52 acres in 

size, legally described as follows: 

 

The South 455.0 feet of Lot 7, Auditor’s Subdivision No. 124, Anoka County, Minnesota, 

lying East of the easterly right-of-way line of State Trunk Highway 65 and lying West of 

the East 480.0 feet, and excepting therefrom the South 320.0 feet of the West 295.0 feet of 

said Lot 7, subject to easement of record; and 

 

WHEREAS, the plat will reduce the complexity of the legal description, dedicate the right-

of-way for the Trunk Highway 65 frontage road and dedicate drainage and utility easements for 

the benefit of the public; and 

 

WHEREAS, the property is guided as industrial in the City’s Comprehensive Plan and is 

zoned I-1, Light Industrial; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing on the proposed request at its 

June 25, 2018 meeting and recommended approval of the proposed plat, subject to conditions. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Spring Lake 

Park, Minnesota that the City Council does hereby approve the preliminary and final plat for Public 

Storage SLP Addition, as submitted by the applicant and depicted on the plat drawings from 

Westwood Professional Services, Inc dated March 31, 2018, and revised on June 22, 2018, subject 

to the following conditions: 

 

1. Drainage and utility easements 10 feet in width be dedicated around the entire perimeter 

of the property 

2. Easements be dedicated over the storm water management facilities. 

3. Easements be dedicated over the water main, 10 feet minimum on each side of the pipe. 

4. Easements be dedicated over the sanitary sewer, 10 feet minimum on each side of the 

pipe. 

5. Public right of way should be dedicated for the portion of the Service Drive on the west 

edge of the plat, 30 feet in width, replacing the current 30 foot wide easement. 

 

 

 



The foregoing Resolution was moved for adoption by . 

 

Upon Vote being taken thereon, the following voted in favor thereof:. 

 

And the following voted against the same: . 

 

 

Whereon the Mayor declared said Resolution duly passed and adopted the 2nd day of July, 2018. 

 

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK, MINNESOTA 

 

 

__________________________________ 

      Cindy Hansen, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________________ 

Daniel R. Buchholtz, MMC, Administrator 



Memo 

 

 

  

To: Planning Commission  From: Phil Carlson, AICP 

 City of Spring Lake Park  Stantec 

File: Public Storage Preliminary Plat Review Date: June 25, 2018 

 

Reference: Public Storage | 7807 Highway 65 Northeast   

PUBLIC STORAGE PRELIMINARY PLAT REVIEW 

Pubic Storage currently 

operates a mini storage 

facility at 7807 Highway 65 

Northeast in Spring Lake 

Park, guided commercial 

and zoned I-1: Light 

Industrial.  Public Storage 

intends to complete 

renovations to modernize 

the facility which were 

reviewed by the City Council 

in a Site Plan review earlier 

this year. One of the 

conditions of approval was 

the submission of a plat for 

the property. The applicants 

have submitted a 

Preliminary Plat to be called 

Public Storage SLP First 

Addition. 

DISCUSSION 

The submitted preliminary plat creates one platted lot from the previous lot, which had a lengthy legal description. In 

addition to simplifying the lot description, there are easements required for the service road and utility and drainage 

purposes – the City needs perimeter easements (minimum of 10-feet), easements over the stormwater management 

facilities, easements over the water main (minimum of 10-feet on each side of pipe), and additional easements over the 

sanitary sewer to provide a minimum of 10-feet on each side of pipe.   

  



June 25, 2018 

Planning Commission  

Page 2 of 2  

Reference: Public Storage | 7807 Highway 65 Northeast   

  

RECOMMENDATION 

We recommend that the Planning Commission recommend approval of the Preliminary Plat for Public Storage SLP First 

Addition with the following conditions: 

1. Drainage and utility easements 10 feet in width be dedicated around the entire perimeter of the property. 

2. Easements be dedicated over the stormwater management facilities. 

3. Easements be dedicated over the water main, 10-feet minimum on each side of the pipe. 

4. Easements be dedicated over the sanitary sewer, 10-feet minimum on each side of the pipe. 

5. Public right-of-way should be dedicated for the portion of the Service Drive on the west edge of the plat, 30 feet 

in width, replacing the current 30-foot-wide easement.   



05/31/18

Common Ground Alliance

N
:\0

01
32

11
.0

4\
D

W
G

\S
U

RV
EY

\0
01

32
11

.0
4P

P0
1.

D
W

G

SHEET NUMBER:

1
1

FIELD WORK DATE: .

.

0013211.04PP01

Call 48 Hours before digging:

811 or call811.com

DATE:

PREPARED FOR:

Spring Lake Park, Minnesota
05/31/18

OF

FIELD CREW:

DRAWN:

CHECKED:

DESIGNED: JWF

NHC

TWB

© 2018 Westwood Professional Services, Inc.

7807 Highway
65 Northeast

Preliminary Plat for
Public Storage SLP First

Addition6162 S. Willow Drive, Suite 320
Greenwood Village, CO 80111

05/31/18INITIAL ISSUE:
REVISIONS:

Phone (320) 253-9495 3701 12th Street North, Suite 206
Fax (320) 358-2001 St. Cloud, MN 56303
Toll Free (800) 270-9495

DATE: LICENSE NO.

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAN WAS PREPARED BY ME
OR UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION AND THAT I AM A
DULY LICENSED LAND SURVEYOR UNDER THE LAWS OF THE
STATE OF MINNESOTA

Nathan H. Carlson
45873

Galloway
.
.

.

.

.

.

.

.

6-22-18 UPDATED PER CITY ENGINEER COMMENTS. (TWB)
.

0' 60' 120' 180'

G
UE

6''W



SU
BJ

EC
T

TO
CH

AN
G

E
W

IT
H

O
U

T
N

O
TI

CE

D
RA

FT
CO

PY
PUBLIC STORAGE SLP FIRST ADDITION







Phone (952) 937-5150 7699 Anagram Drive
Fax (952) 937-5822 Eden Prairie, MN 55344
Toll Free (888) 937-5150





  
Form No. 1068-2 
  

Commitment No.: 
Page Number: 

  NCS-865694-LA2 
  1 

  

 

First American Title Insurance Company  
 

  
  

First American Title Insurance Company 
 National Commercial Services  

777 South Figueroa Street 
Suite 400 

Los Angeles, CA 90017  
  

October 16, 2017 
  
Irma Pimentel 
Public Storage 
701 Western Avenue 
Glendale , CA 91201 
    

Phone: (818)244-8080x1525     
   

Fax: (818)543-7341     
  

  
Customer Reference:  PS # 25555 / Spring Lake Park / Highway 65 
  

    
Title Officer: Adam Schlesinger  
Phone: (213)271-1708  
Email: aschlesinger@firstam.com  
    
Order Number:   NCS-865694-LA2  

  

    
Property: 7807 Highway 65 Northeast, Spring Lake Park, MN 

Attached please find the following item(s):  
  
Commitment 
  
Thank You for your confidence and support.  We at First American Title Insurance Company  maintain the 
fundamental principle:  

Customer First! 



  
Form No. 1068-2 
  

Commitment No.: 
Page Number: 

  NCS-865694-LA2 
  2 

  

 

 

First American Title Insurance Company 

INFORMATION 

The Title Insurance Commitment is a legal contract between you and the company.  It is issued to show 
the basis on which we will issue a Title Insurance Policy to you.  The Policy will insure you against certain 
risks to the land title, subject to the limitations shown in the policy.  
  
The Company will give you a sample of the Policy form, if you ask.  
  
The Commitment is based on the land title as of the Commitment Date.  Any changes in the land title or 
the transaction may affect the Commitment and the Policy.  
  
The Commitment is subject to its Requirements, Exceptions and Conditions.  
  
This information is not part of the title insurance commitment.  
  

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
  

Page 
  
  
  
Agreement to Issue Policy  3
  
  
  
Schedule A  
  
  
  
  1. Commitment Date  4
  2. Policies to be Issued, Amounts and Proposed Insured  4
  3. Interest in the Land and Owner  4
  4. Description of the Land  4
  
  
  
Schedule B-1 - Requirements   
  
  
  
Schedule B-2 - Exceptions   
  
  
  
Conditions  
  

YOU SHOULD READ THE COMMITMENT VERY CAREFULLY. 
If you have any questions about the Commitment, 

please contact the issuing office. 
  



  
Form No. 1068-2 
  

Commitment No.: 
Page Number: 

  NCS-865694-LA2 
  3 

  

 

 
COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE  

  
Issued by  

  
First American Title Insurance Company   

  
Agreement to Issue Policy  

We agree to issue a policy to you according to the terms of this Commitment.  
  
When we show the policy amount and your name as the proposed insured in Schedule A, this 
Commitment becomes effective as of the Commitment Date shown in Schedule A.  
  
If the Requirements shown in this Commitment have not been met within six months after the 
Commitment Date, our obligation under this Commitment will end.  Also, our obligation under this 
Commitment will end when the Policy is issued and then our obligation to you will be under the Policy.  
  
Our obligation under this Commitment is limited by the following:  
  
               The Provisions in Schedule A.  
  
               The Requirements in Schedule B-1.  
  
               The Exceptions in Schedule B-2.  
  
               The Conditions.  
  
This Commitment is not valid without Schedule A and Sections 1 and 2 of Schedule B.  
  



  
Form No. 1068-2 
  

Commitment No.: 
Page Number: 

  NCS-865694-LA2 
  4 

  

 

 

Revision Information:   

SCHEDULE A 

1. Commitment Date:  September 19, 2017 at 7:30 A.M.  

2. Policy or Policies to be issued: 
  
    Amount 

(A)   ALTA Owner's Policy  $0.00 
       
    Proposed Insured:        
        
  

  
(B)   ALTA Loan Policy $0.00 

       
    Proposed Insured:   
        
        
  

3. (A)  The estate or interest in the land described in this Commitment is:  

Fee Simple  

(B)  Title to said estate or interest at the date hereof is vested in:  
  
Secure Mini Storage Limited Partnership, a Minnesota limited partnership  

4. The land referred to in this Commitment is situated in the City of Spring Lake Park, County of 
Anoka, State of Minnesota, and is described as follows:  

The South 455.0 feet of Lot 7, Auditor's Subdivision No. 124, Anoka County, Minnesota, lying 
East of the easterly right-of-way line of State Trunk Highway No. 65 and lying West of the East 
480.0 feet, and excepting therefrom the South 325.0 feet of the West 295.0 feet of said Lot 7. 

https://ep.firstam.com/Packages/TransferDocument?PackageID=6813125&DocID=73636325&ImageDocumentID=738903349&TabID=4&attach=true


  
Form No. 1068-2 
  

Commitment No.: 
Page Number: 

  NCS-865694-LA2 
  5 

  

 

 

SCHEDULE B 

SECTION ONE 
REQUIREMENTS 

The following requirements must be met: 

1. This commitment has been prepared for information purposes only and does not reflect 
requirements which must be satisfied for the issuance of an owner's policy pursuant to this 
commitment. 

  
  



  
Form No. 1068-2 
  

Commitment No.: 
Page Number: 

  NCS-865694-LA2 
  6 

  

 

 

SCHEDULE B 

SECTION TWO 

EXCEPTIONS 

Any policy we issue will have the following exceptions unless they are taken care of to our satisfaction: 

1. Defects, liens, encumbrances, adverse claims or other matters, if any, created, first appearing in 
the public records, or attaching subsequent to the effective date hereof but prior to the date the 
proposed Insured acquires for value of record the estate or interest or mortgage thereon covered 
by this Commitment. 

2. Discrepancies, conflicts in boundary lines, shortages in area, encroachments, or any other fact 
which a correct survey would disclose, and which are not shown by public records. 

3. Any facts, rights, interests, or claims which are not shown by the public records but which could 
be ascertained by an inspection of said land or by making inquiry of persons in possession 
thereof. 

4. Easements, claims of easement or encumbrances which are not shown by the public records. 

5. Any lien, or right to a lien, for services, labor or material heretofore or hereafter furnished, 
imposed by law and not shown in the public records. 

6. Taxes or assessments which are not shown as existing liens by the records of any taxing 
authority that levies taxes or assessments on real property or by the public records. 

7. Real estate taxes payable in the year 2017 in the amount of $106,343.84 total; first half paid, 
second half paid.   

  Base tax:  $103,903.11. 
  Tax Parcel No.  01-30-24-34-0003 
  

8. Levied and pending special assessments, if any. 

9. Rights of tenants under unrecorded leases. 

10. Limitations on access to Trunk Highway No. 65, as shown by the following: 
 
a.) Final Certificate, dated June 20, 1960, recorded September 23, 1960, as Document No. 
214588, in Book 492 of Misc. on Page 447. 
 
b.) Minnesota Department of Transportation Right of Way Plat No. 02-34, recorded October 10, 
2012, as Document No. 2040756.001. 

11. Easement for roadway purposes, as reserved in the Warranty Deed dated February 29, 1980, 
recorded March 11, 1980, as Document No. 545803. 

As assigned to the City of Spring Lake Park, a Minnesota municipal corporation, by Assignment of 
Easement dated March 14, 1988, recorded June 28, 1988, as Document No. 812745.    

https://ep.firstam.com/Packages/TransferDocument?PackageID=6813125&DocID=73636306&ImageDocumentID=738907134&attach=true
https://ep.firstam.com/Packages/TransferDocument?PackageID=6813125&DocID=73636307&ImageDocumentID=740621848&attach=true
https://ep.firstam.com/Packages/TransferDocument?PackageID=6813125&DocID=73636308&ImageDocumentID=738907845&attach=true
https://ep.firstam.com/Packages/TransferDocument?PackageID=6813125&DocID=73636309&ImageDocumentID=738908242&attach=true


  
Form No. 1068-2 
  

Commitment No.: 
Page Number: 

  NCS-865694-LA2 
  7 

  

 
12. Terms, conditions and agreements of the Restated Parking Easement contained in the instrument 

dated April 11, 1985, recorded April 23, 1985, as Document No. 671871.  

13. Easement for purposes of sewer line, storm water pump drain and water main, together with the 
rights incidental thereto, as contained in the Restated Sewer Line Easement dated April 11, 1985, 
recorded April 23, 1985, as Document No. 671872. 

14. Easement for sanitary sewer purposes in favor of the Village of Spring Lake Park, a Municipal 
corporation, together with any rights incidental thereto, as described and contained in the 
Certificate dated November 30, 1966, recorded November 30, 1966, as Document No. 293320, in 
Book 736 of Misc. on Page 207. 

15. Mortgage and Security Agreement, dated August 31, 1995, recorded September 13, 1995, as 
Document No. 1182516, executed by Secure Mini Storage Limited Partnership, a Minnesota 
limited partnership, to Northern Life Insurance Company, a Washington corporation, in the 
original principal amount of $5,500,000.00. 

As amended by Amendment dated February 25, 1997, recorded March 4, 1997, as Document No. 
1266524.   

As amended and restated by Amended and Restated Mortgage and Security Agreement, dated 
September 24, 1998, recorded October 2, 1998, as Document No. 1375191.   

As further amended by Amended and Restated Mortgage, Security Agreement, Financing 
Statement and Fixture Filing, dated April 21, 2003, recorded April 29, 2003, as Document No. 
1792641.   

As modified by First Modification of Amended and Restated Mortgage, Security Agreement, 
Financing Statement and Fixture Filing, Amended and Restated Assignment of Leases and Rents 
and Other Loan Documents, dated October 12, 2004, recorded December 1, 2004, as Document 
No. 1971041.001.   

16. Assignment of Rents and Leases, dated August 31, 1995, recorded September 13, 1995, as 
Document No. 1182517, executed by Secure Mini Storage Limited Partnership, a Minnesota 
limited partnership, to Northern Life Insurance Company, a Washington corporation. 

As amended by Amendment dated February 25, 1997, recorded March 4, 1997, as Document No. 
1266524.   

As amended and restated by Amended and Restated Assignment of Rents and Leases, dated 
September 24, 1998, recorded October 2, 1998, as Document No. 1375192.   

As further amended by Amended and Restated Assignment of Rents and Leases, dated April 21, 
2003, recorded April 29, 2003, as Document No. 1792642.   

As modified by First Modification of Amended and Restated Mortgage, Security Agreement, 
Financing Statement and Fixture Filing, Amended and Restated Assignment of Leases and Rents 
and Other Loan Documents, dated October 12, 2004, recorded December 1, 2004, as Document 
No. 1971041.001.   

17. Mortgage and Security Agreement, dated October 29, 1999, recorded November 16, 1999, as 
Document No. 1469504, executed by Secure Mini Storage Limited Partnership, a Minnesota 
limited partnership, to ReliaStar Life Insurance Company of New York, a New York corporation, in 
the original principal amount of $1,530,000.00. 

https://ep.firstam.com/Packages/TransferDocument?PackageID=6813125&DocID=73636310&ImageDocumentID=738908529&attach=true
https://ep.firstam.com/Packages/TransferDocument?PackageID=6813125&DocID=73636311&ImageDocumentID=738906365&attach=true
https://ep.firstam.com/Packages/TransferDocument?PackageID=6813125&DocID=73636312&ImageDocumentID=738907442&attach=true
https://ep.firstam.com/Packages/TransferDocument?PackageID=6813125&DocID=73636313&ImageDocumentID=740626423&attach=true
https://ep.firstam.com/Packages/TransferDocument?PackageID=6813125&DocID=73636314&ImageDocumentID=740627729&attach=true
https://ep.firstam.com/Packages/TransferDocument?PackageID=6813125&DocID=73636314&ImageDocumentID=740627729&attach=true
https://ep.firstam.com/Packages/TransferDocument?PackageID=6813125&DocID=73636315&ImageDocumentID=738904610&attach=true
https://ep.firstam.com/Packages/TransferDocument?PackageID=6813125&DocID=73636316&ImageDocumentID=738905877&attach=true
https://ep.firstam.com/Packages/TransferDocument?PackageID=6813125&DocID=73636317&ImageDocumentID=738908815&attach=true
https://ep.firstam.com/Packages/TransferDocument?PackageID=6813125&DocID=73636317&ImageDocumentID=738908815&attach=true
https://ep.firstam.com/Packages/TransferDocument?PackageID=6813125&DocID=73636318&ImageDocumentID=740631860&attach=true
https://ep.firstam.com/Packages/TransferDocument?PackageID=6813125&DocID=73636320&ImageDocumentID=738904901&attach=true
https://ep.firstam.com/Packages/TransferDocument?PackageID=6813125&DocID=73636321&ImageDocumentID=738906021&attach=true
https://ep.firstam.com/Packages/TransferDocument?PackageID=6813125&DocID=73636323&ImageDocumentID=738905233&attach=true


  
Form No. 1068-2 
  

Commitment No.: 
Page Number: 

  NCS-865694-LA2 
  8 

  

 
18. Assignment of Rents and Leases, dated October 29, 1999, recorded November 16, 1999, as 

Document No. 1469505, executed by Secure Mini Storage Limited Partnership, a Minnesota 
limited partnership, to ReliaStar Life Insurance Company of New York, a New York corporation. 

  

https://ep.firstam.com/Packages/TransferDocument?PackageID=6813125&DocID=73636324&ImageDocumentID=738905392&attach=true


  
Form No. 1068-2 
  

Commitment No.: 
Page Number: 

  NCS-865694-LA2 
  9 

  

 

 

1.  DEFINITIONS 
(a)"Mortgage" means mortgage, deed of trust or other security instrument.  
(b)"Public Records" means title records that give constructive notice of matters affecting the title 
according to the state law where the land is located.  
  
2.  LATER DEFECTS 
The Exceptions in Schedule B - Section Two may be amended to show any defects, liens or 
encumbrances that appear for the first time in the public records or are created or attached between the 
Commitment Date and the date on which all of the Requirements (a) and (c) of Schedule B - Section One 
are met.  We shall have no liability to you because of this amendment.  
  
3.  EXISTING DEFECTS 
If any defects, liens or encumbrances existing at Commitment Date are not shown in Schedule B, we may 
amend Schedule B to show them.  If we do amend Schedule B to show these defects, liens or 
encumbrances, we shall be liable to you according to Paragraph 4 below unless you knew of this 
information and did not tell us about it in writing.  
  
4.  LIMITATION OF OUR LIABILITY 
Our only obligation is to issue to you the Policy referred to in this Commitment, when you have met its 
Requirements.  If we have any liability to you for any loss you incur because of an error in this 
Commitment, our liability will be limited to your actual loss caused by your relying on this Commitment 
when you acted in good faith to:  
  
comply with the Requirements shown in Schedule B - Section One  
or  
eliminate with our written consent any Exceptions shown in Schedule B - Section Two.  
  
We shall not be liable for more than the Policy Amount shown in Schedule A of this Commitment and our 
liability is subject to the terms of the Policy form to be issued to you.  
  
5.  CLAIMS MUST BE BASED ON THIS COMMITMENT 
Any claim, whether or not based on negligence, which you may have against us concerning the title to 
the land must be based on this commitment and is subject to its terms.  



  
Form No. 1068-2 
  

Commitment No.: 
Page Number: 

  NCS-865694-LA2 
  10 

  

 

 
Privacy Policy  

  
We Are Committed to Safeguarding Customer Information 
In order to better serve your needs now and in the future, we may ask you to provide us with certain 
information.  We understand that you may be concerned about what we will do with such information - 
particularly any personal or financial information.  We agree that you have a right to know how we will 
utilize the personal information you provide to us.  Therefore, together with our parent company, The 
First American Corporation, we have adopted this Privacy Policy to govern the use and handling of your 
personal information. 
  
Applicability 
This Privacy Policy governs our use of the information which you provide to us.  It does not govern the 
manner in which we may use information we have obtained from any other source, such as information 
obtained from a public record or from another person or entity.  First American has also adopted broader 
guidelines that govern our use of personal information regardless of its source.  First American calls these 
guidelines its Fair Information Values, a copy of which can be found on our website at www.firstam.com. 
  
Types of Information 
Depending upon which of our services you are utilizing, the types of nonpublic personal information that 
we may collect include: 

• Information we receive from you on applications, forms and in other communications to us, 
whether in writing, in person, by telephone or any other means; 

• Information about your transactions with us, our affiliated companies, or others; and 
• Information we receive from a consumer reporting agency. 

  
Use of Information 
We request information from you for our own legitimate business purposes and not for the benefit of any 
nonaffiliated party.  Therefore, we will not release your information to nonaffiliated parties except: (1) as 
necessary for us to provide the product or service you have requested of us; or (2) as permitted by law.  
We may, however, store such information indefinitely, including the period after which any customer 
relationship has ceased.  Such information may be used for any internal purpose, such as quality control 
efforts or customer analysis.  We may also provide all of the types of nonpublic personal information 
listed above to one or more of our affiliated companies.  Such affiliated companies include financial 
service providers, such as title insurers, property and casualty insurers, and trust and investment advisory 
companies, or companies involved in real estate services, such as appraisal companies, home warranty 
companies, and escrow companies.  Furthermore, we may also provide all the information we collect, as 
described above, to companies that perform marketing services on our behalf, on behalf of our affiliated 
companies, or to other financial institutions with whom we or our affiliated companies have joint 
marketing agreements. 
  
Former Customers 
Even if you are no longer our customer, our Privacy Policy will continue to apply to you. 
  
Confidentiality and Security 
We will use our best efforts to ensure that no unauthorized parties have access to any of your 
information.  We restrict access to nonpublic personal information about you to those individuals and 
entities who need to know that information to provide products or services to you.  We will use our best 
efforts to train and oversee our employees and agents to ensure that your information will be handled 
responsibly and in accordance with this Privacy Policy and First American's Fair Information Values.  We 
currently maintain physical, electronic, and procedural safeguards that comply with federal regulations to 
guard your nonpublic personal information. 



DRAFT PROCEEDINGS 
 
Minutes of the Spring Lake Park Planning Commission regularly scheduled meeting held on June 25, 2018 
at the Spring Lake Park Community Center, 1301 81st Avenue N.E., at 7:00 P.M. 
 
1.  Call to Order 
 
Chairperson Hansen called the meeting to order at 7:00 P.M. 
 
2.  Roll Call 
 
Members Present: Commissioners Smith, Bernhagen, Eischens, Cobbs, Dircks and Hansen  
 
Members Absent: None 
 
Staff Present: Planner Carlson; Administrator Buchholtz and Executive Assistant 

Gooden 
 
Visitors:   Councilmember Delfs 
    Barbara Goodboe-Bisschoff, Spring Lake Park 
    Paddy Jones, Ham Lake 
    Keith Meyers, 733 81st Avenue NE    
   
3.  Pledge of Allegiance 
 
4.  Approval of Minutes – May 29, 2018 
 
MOTION BY COMMISSIONER BERNHAGEN, SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER SMITH, 
APPROVING THE MINUTES OF MAY 29, 2018.  ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL AYES.  MOTION 
CARRIED. 
 
5.  Public Hearing – Approval of Driveway Variance – 722 81st Avenue NE 
 
Planner Carlson reported that the City received an application for a variance at 733 81st Avenue NE to allow 
for the extension of a driveway along the western edge of the property, one foot of the property line, within 
the required five foot side yard setback. He reported that the applicant stated this improvement will increase 
parking for cars and recreational vehicles on the site, increase property values, and improve drainage.   He 
reported that the property is a 9,956 square-foot residential site, along 81st Avenue NE.  He stated that 
currently the site site includes a single-family home, metal shed and driveway.  He reported that the property 
is fenced on three sides, the west and north side are also fenced with a wood privacy fence and the east side 
is fenced with a chain-link fence.   He stated the property is zoned R-1 Single Family Residential and guided 
Low Density Residential in the 2030 Future Land Use Plan. 
 
Mr. Carlson reported that the site is standard length and width and does not include any unique conditions 
such as steep slopes or wetlands that could be considered a practical difficulty for construction of the 
driveway extension elsewhere on the property. 
 
Mr. Carlson stated that the one potential difficulty that the property owner faces is that the house is currently 
set back approximately 10 feet from the western property line, allowing only five feet of pavement under 
the existing code requirements.  He stated that five feet is not sufficiently wide to park a car or recreational 
vehicle. He explained that the Code supports the storage of these vehicles on residential property as long 



DRAFT PROCEEDINGS PAGE 2 June 25, 2018 
 
as they meet the required five-foot side-yard setback.  He stated that the location of these vehicles on the 
lot is not explicitly stated, but it is standard to practice to recommend parking out of the front yard area. 
 
Mr. Carlson stated that the applicant has included a letter of support from the neighbor and it states that 
there are no concerns with the extension next to the property line that the neighbors share. Mr. Carlson 
reported that the applicant states that drainage will be improved on the site through the placement of a curb 
along the driveway extension.  
 
Mr. Carlson stated that staff recommends that the Planning Commission recommend to the City Council 
approval of the application for a variance to allow a driveway extension with the following conditions:  
 
1.  The wooden fence between the applicant’s property and the property to the west remain in place, or  
      similar screening, for the new parking area from neighboring properties. 
 
2.  All recreation vehicles will be parked at the rear of the proposed driveway expansion. 
 
3.  Additional information about proposed drainage improvements will be submitted to the Public Works  
     Director for review prior to construction. 
 
Keith Meyers, 733 81st Avenue NE, stated that the expansion will help with the drainage issues along his 
garage and the curb that will be added will allow the water to flow away from the neighboring property.  
 
Commissioner Eischens stated that it appeared that the applicant has a good relationship with the 
neighboring properties.  Mr. Meyers stated that the neighbors are comfortable with the project and he has 
a great relationship with them. 
 
Commissioner Smith stated that he wanted to make sure that if the variance is granted to the applicant, the 
neighbors and applicant understand that the variance is allowing for a permanent change to the property. 
Planner Carlson stated that a variance runs with the land and this would place conditions on the land for 
future improvements. 
 
Chairperson Hansen opened the public hearing at 7:15 PM. There was no discussion from the floor. 
Chairperson Hansen closed the public hearing at 7:15 PM.  
 
MOTION MADE BY COMMISSIONER SMITH, SECOND BY EISCHENS TO RECOMMEND 
APPROVAL OF DRIVEWAY VARIANCE AT 733 81ST AVENUE NE WITH THE FOLLOWING 
CONDITIONS: 1. THE WOODEN FENCE BETWEEN THE APPLICANTS PROPERTY AND THE 
PROPERTY TO THE WEST REMAIN IN PLACE, OR SIMILAR SCREENING, FOR THE NEW 
PARKING AREA FROM NEIGHBORING PROPERTIES; 2. ALL RECREATIONAL VEHICLES WILL 
BE PARKED AT THE REAR OF THE PROPOSED DRIVEWAY EXPANSION; 3. ADDITIONAL 
INFORMATION ABOUT THE PROPOSED DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS BE SUBMITTED TO 
THE PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR FOR REVIEW PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION. ROLL CALL VOTE: 
ALL AYES. MOTION CARRIED. 
 
6.  Public Hearing- Approval of Preliminary Plat as a condition of the site plan approval for redevelopment  
     of a portion of the Public Storage property at 7808 Highway 65 NE 
 
Planner Carlson reported that the City Council has reviewed and approved the Site Plan earlier this year for 
Public Storage located at 7807 Highway 65 NE. He stated that one of the conditions of approval was the 
submission of a plat for the property.  He stated that the applicants have submitted a Preliminary Plat to be 
named Public Storage SLP First Addition. 



DRAFT PROCEEDINGS PAGE 3 June 25, 2018 
 
Mr. Carlson reported that the submitted preliminary plat creates one platted lot from the previous lot, which 
had lengthy legal description.  He stated that in addition to simplifying the lot description, there are 
easements required for the service road and utility and drainage purposes. He stated that the City needs 
perimeter easements (minimum 10 feet), easements over the stormwater management facilities, and 
easements over the sanitary sewer to provide a minimum of 10-feet on each side of the pipe.  
 
Mr. Carlson stated that staff recommends that the Planning Commission recommend to the City Council 
approval of Public Storage Preliminary Plat for Public Storage SLP First Addition with the following 
conditions: 
 
1.  Drainage and utility easements 10 feet in width be dedicated around the entire perimeter of the property. 
 
2.  Easements be dedicated over the stormwater management facilities 
 
3.  Easements be dedicated over the water main, 10-feet minimum on each side of the pipe 
 
4.  Easements be dedicated over the sanitary sewer, 10-feet minimum on each side of the pipe. 
 
5. Public right-of-way should be dedicated for the portion of the Service Drive on the west edge of the plat,  
    30 feet in width, replacing the current 30-foot wide easement. 
 
Commissioner Smith stated that he had toured the facility and stated that the applicant’s purpose is to 
improve the site and clean up the property.  Mr. Carlson stated that he has dealt with Public Storage in other 
communities and they have been very professional. 
 
Administrator Buchholtz stated that the improvements will help a neighboring business with stormwater 
issues through the maintenance of the pond on the site. He stated the project will be reviewed by Rice Creek 
Watershed District. 
 
Commissioner Dircks inquired where the water main would be located and wanted to assure that the 
building was not placed over the sewer or water mains.  Administrator Buchholtz stated that the water main 
is located on the west side of the property and it will create a water main loop to assist the strip mall if there 
would be water main break in that particular area.  He stated that with the creation of the easements, they 
would  prevent any building over the mains.  
 
Chairperson Hansen opened the public hearing at 7:25 PM. There was no discussion from the floor. 
Chairperson Hansen closed the public hearing at 7:25 PM. 
 
MOTION MADE BY COMMISSIONER EISCHENS, SECOND BY SMITH TO APPROVE 
PRELIMINARY PLAT FOR PUBLIC STORAGE LOCATED AT 7807 HIGHWAY 65 NE WITH THE 
FOLLOWING CONDITIONS: 1.  DRAINAGE AND UTILITY EASEMENTS 10 FEET IN WIDTH BE 
DEDICATED AROUND THE ENTIRE PERIMETER OF THE PROPERTY; 2. EASEMENTS BE 
DEDICATED OVER THE STORMWATER MANAGEMENT FACILITIES; 3. EASEMENTS BE 
DEDICATED OVER THE WATER MAIN, 10-FEET MINIMUM ON EACH SIDE OF THE PIPE; 4.  
EASEMENTS BE DEDICATED OVER THE SANITARY SEWER, 10-FEET MINIMUM ON EACH 
SIDE OF THE PIPE; 5.  PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY SHOULD BE DEDICATED FOR THE PORTION 
OF THE SERVICE DRIVE ON THE WEST EDGE OF THE PLAT, 30 FEET IN WIDTH, REPLACING 
THE CURRENT 30-FOOT WIDE EASEMENT. ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL AYES. MOTION CARRIED. 
 
 
 





RESOLUTION NO. 18-22 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CIRCULATION OF THE CITY OF SPRING LAKE 

PARK DRAFT 2040 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

 

 

WHEREAS, state statutes (Minn. Stat. 473.175-473.871) requires that cities review and 

revise their comprehensive plans for consistency with Metropolitan Council policy plans and state 

statutes; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City of Spring Lake Park is required to submit its draft comprehensive 

plan update to adjacent jurisdictions and other government agencies for review and comment prior 

to submission to the Metropolitan Council for its review; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Spring Lake Park has completed a draft comprehensive plan 

update consistent with Metropolitan Council requirements and state statutes; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing on the draft 2040 

Comprehensive Plan on June 25, 2018; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission unanimously recommended approval of the draft 

2040 Comprehensive Plan; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed the plan and has found it ready for circulation 

to adjacent jurisdictions and other government agencies for review and comment. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Spring 

Lake Park, Minnesota that the City Council does hereby authorize circulation of the draft 

comprehensive plan to adjacent jurisdictions and other government agencies for review and 

comment. 

 

 

The foregoing Resolution was moved for adoption by Councilmember. 

 

Upon Vote being taken thereon, the following voted in favor thereof:  

 

And the following voted against the same:. 

 

 

  



 

Whereon the Mayor declared said Resolution duly passed and adopted the 2nd day of July, 2018. 

 

 

APPROVED BY: 

 

___________________________________ 

Cindy Hansen, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

Daniel R. Buchholtz, City Administrator 

 

 



DRAFT PROCEEDINGS PAGE 4 June 25, 2018 
 
7.  Comprehensive Plan Review 
 
Planner Carlson provided an overview of the draft the 2040 Comprehensive Plan. He reviewed with the 
Commission the process the plan has gone through, highlighted chapter subjects and informed the 
Commission of the next steps.  He stated that after any further edits the plan would be presented to the 
City Council for their approval on July 2, 2018. 
 
Mr. Carlson highlighted the 2040 Planned Future Land Use Map and noted that a new category titled, 
“Mixed Use” has been added. He explained that this area of the city could see new uses added in the 
future such as redevelopment with housing mixed with industrial or commercial. He noted that this area 
would allow for much flexibility for future development.   
 
Chairperson Hansen inquired if the city will see an increase in density if zoning changed in certain areas.  
Mr. Carlson stated that the mixed-use area could handle more density and he stated that future projects 
similar to the Dominium project could be built in that area.  
 
Commissioner Smith inquired if there was any guidance from the Metropolitan Council for churches to be 
built in Industrial areas. Mr. Carlson stated that there is no guidance and church or assembly uses cannot 
be reviewed differently than other uses in an industrial area.  He stated that in many situations churches 
are looking for large reasonably priced buildings for their use. 
 
Administrator Buchholtz noted that many times industrial building, especially those in the City, have 
issues with having enough parking spaces to accommodate large amounts of people for assembly usage. 
 
Chairperson Hansen opened the public hearing at 7:58 PM. There was no discussion from the floor. 
Chairperson Hansen closed the public hearing at 7:58 PM. 
 
MOTION MADE BY COMMISSIONER EISCHENS, SECOND BY BERNHAGEN TO APPROVE 
DRAFT 2040 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN. ROLL CALL VOTE: ALL AYES. MOTION CARRIED. 
 
8. Other 
 
Administrator Buchholtz stated that the Water Plan was included with the Comprehensive Plan for the 
Commission to review. He reported that the Stormwater Plan draft copy is complete and will be presented 
to the City Council at a workshop session in September to then be forwarded to the Planning Commission 
once completed.   
 
Administrator Buchholtz thanked Stantec staff and Executive Assistant Gooden for their work on the 
Comprehensive Plan. He explained how the project has been a hybrid of many people working on the 
plan to make it a reality.  
 
9.  Adjourn 
 
MOTION BY COMMISSIONER SMITH, SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER BERNHAGEN TO 
ADJOURN.  VOICE VOTE:  ALL AYES.  MOTION CARRIED. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:00 PM. 





2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Spring Lake Park, 
MN 

DRAFT 
June 20, 2018 



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Acknowledgements 
 

Acknowledgements  
 

 
This Comprehensive Plan would not have been possible without the collaboration of City staff, Planning 
Commission Members, City Council Members, consultant staff, and the general public. A special thanks 
to these team members for the dedication and effort they gave to make this Plan a success. 

City Staff 
Dan Buchholtz, City Administrator 

Jenny Gooden, Executive Assistant 

Stantec Consultant Staff 
Phil Carlson, AICP 

Phil Gravel, PE 

Katrina Nygaard 

Planning Commission Members 
Hans Hansen (Chair) 

Jeff Bernhagen (Vice Chair) 

Lisa Dircks 

Vince Smith 

Doug Eischens 

Rick Cobbs   

 



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Table of Contents 
 

Table of Contents 
 

Chapter 1: Background 1-1 

Chapter 2: Land Use 2-1 

Chapter 3: Housing 3-1 

Chapter 4: Parks, Trails, and Community Facilities 4-1 

Chapter 5: Transportation 5-1 

Chapter 6: Water Resources 6-1 

Chapter 7: Implementation 7-1 

  



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Table of Contents 
 

LIST OF FIGURES 
Chapter 1: Background 

• Figure 1-1: Spring Lake Park Community Designation 
• Figure 1-2: Historic and Forecasted Population 
• Figure 1-3: Anoka County and Spring Lake Park Population Comparison 
• Figure 1-4: Actual and Projected Households 
• Figure 1-5: Actual and Projected Households in Anoka County and Spring Lake Park 
• Figure 1-6: Population Pyramid for Spring Lake Park, 2010 
• Figure 1-7: Racial Diversity in Spring Lake Park  
• Figure 1-8: Educational Attainment 
• Figure 1-9: Employment in Spring Lake Park 
• Figure 1-10: Means of Transportation to Work  
• Figure 1-11: Household Income Distribution 
• Figure 1-12: Median Household Income Comparison 

Chapter 2: Land Use 

• Figure 2-1: 2018 Existing Land Use 
• Figure 2-2: 2040 Future Land Use 
• Figure 2-3: Potential Redevelopment Areas 
• Figure 2-4: Gross Solar Potential 

Chapter 3: Housing 

• Figure 3-1: Housing Age 
• Figure 3-2: Owner Occupied Single Family Residential Housing Values 

Chapter 4: Parks, Trails, and Community Facilities 

• Figure 4-1: Existing Parks, Trails, and Community Facilities 
• Figure 4-2: Planned Parks and Recreation 

Chapter 5: Transportation 

• Figure 5-1: Transportation Classification 
• Figure 5-2: Transit System 
• Figure 5-3: Traffic Analysis Zones 

Chapter 6: Water Resources 

• Figures to be developed 

Chapter 7: Implementation 

• Figure 7-1: Zoning 

 



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 1: Background | 1-1 
 

Chapter 1: Background 
 

INTRODUCTION 
A Comprehensive Plan is a tool to implement a community’s long-range vision for the future. The 
Comprehensive Plan addresses many aspects related to City infrastructure and services, including 
transportation, land use, water systems, housing, parks and trails, and the overall vitality of the City. The 
plan provides a guide for elected officials to use when making decisions. The goal of the comprehensive 
planning process to is to develop a plan that is a key resource for the community to use when facing 
issues such as redevelopment, locating a new park, or determining future transportation needs.  

The Comprehensive Plan also serves as a legal foundation for rules and regulations adopted by the 
community, such as the zoning ordinance and subdivision regulations. The Comprehensive Plan shapes 
the community’s zoning code and regulations, and can be used to guide land uses to best serve the 
community’s changing needs. To ensure that the Comprehensive Plan addresses the needs of the 
community, full engagement from City staff, elected officials, committees and commissions, and the public 
is essential.  

The comprehensive planning process is a systematic, ongoing, forward-looking process of analysis of 
opportunities and constraints, for the purpose of formulating a plan to accomplish the community’s goals 
and objectives. To plan effectively, the City needs a clear and comprehensive understanding of current 
conditions, and influences and trends that will shape the community’s future.  

Comprehensive plans are required to be completed every ten years by the Metropolitan Council. 
Communities within the 7-County Metropolitan Area are required to complete comprehensive plans by the 
Metropolitan Land Planning Act. 

This Comprehensive Plan is organized into chapters, based on the different elements affecting the City. 
Chapter 1 begins with a summary of the planning process and identifies existing demographic and 
economic conditions that shape Spring Lake Park. The following five chapters address key elements of 
the Plan, identifying goals and policies for future development, mapping and describing existing 
conditions, and describing relevant programs. These plan elements include: 

• Chapter 2: Land Use 
• Chapter 3: Housing 
• Chapter 4: Parks, Trails, and Community Facilities 
• Chapter 5: Transportation 
• Chapter 6: Water Resources  

The plan concludes with an implementation chapter which identifies land use controls, the plan 
amendment process, and the City’s Capital Improvements Program. The implementation chapter is 
critical to the success of the Plan, as it develops action steps to turn the goals and policies identified in 
each chapter to tangible projects in the community.  

 



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 1: Background | 1-2 
 

PLANNING PROCESS 
This Comprehensive Plan is the result of a process that included a series of public meetings and 
background data analysis. The first step in the process was a review of current conditions, as well as 
influences and trends that will shape the community’s future. Background information included:  past and 
current trends in demographic data; land use; surface water, public utilities and facilities; transportation; 
and parks and recreation areas. An assessment of these characteristics is an important element in 
developing goals and policies that are consistent with existing conditions in the City. 

The City kicked off the planning process by reviewing and updating background and demographic data 
and developing a planning process that would identify issues, develop goals, policies, and alternatives, 
and create an implementation plan to address the future development of Spring Lake Park. The City’s 
Planning Commission members served as guides throughout the process, sharing feedback through all 
phases.  

Following the background analysis, a Planning Commission meeting was held with members of the 
Spring Lake Park Planning Commission and City Staff in February of 2018 to identify key strengths, 
weaknesses, and opportunities in the community. Key strengths and opportunities identified by residents 
included transportation access for all modes, parks and public facilities, and a diverse and affordable 
housing stock. Key weaknesses included maintenance of public facilities and buildings, a lack of east-
west transit options, and maintaining aging housing stock. A complete summary of comments received 
from this meeting is included in Appendix A. These responses were used to revise goals and policies for 
each plan chapter, so that they reflected the concerns of the community.  

In April 2018, the City hosted a community meeting to present background information, share the goals 
and policies, and identify any other issues that needed to be incorporated into the Plan. A complete 
summary of comments received from this meeting is included in Appendix A. 

The information presented in the background report and input provided from community residents 
provided a foundation for developing the Comprehensive Plan. Following consensus on the goals and 
policies, a future land use plan was developed. Because the City is fully developed, the future land use 
plan will be used to guide redevelopment in certain areas of the City.  

After development of the City’s future land use plan, the City’s existing sewer and water, surface water, 
parks and transportation plans were revised to provide consistency with the 2040 Future Land Use Plan. 
A final draft of the Comprehensive Plan was presented to the Planning Commission on May 29, 2018. 
After input from the Planning Commission, the Plan was revised and presented to the City Council for 
authorization to submit the plan for adjacent community review. After the six-month review period, the 
Council adopted the final plan contingent on Met Council approval on DATE. 

  



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 1: Background | 1-3 
 

CITY BACKGROUND 
The City of Spring Lake Park was established in December of 1953, when residents of the township voted 
to approve incorporation. Today the City remains relatively small, with an estimated 2016 population of 
6,519. Most of Spring Lake Park is located in southern Anoka County, but a small portion in the eastern 
part of the City lies within Ramsey County (Figure 1-1). The City is located approximately 12 miles north 
of downtown Minneapolis. Neighboring communities include Blaine to the north, Mounds View to the east, 
Fridley to the south and east, and Coon Rapids to the northwest. Spring Lake Park is served by several 
major highways. State Highway 47 (University Avenue) runs along the western edge of the City, and 
State Highway 65 and County Highway 10 (formerly US Highway 10) intersect in the northeast quadrant 
of the City.  

The City’s last Comprehensive Plan Update was adopted in the year 2009. The 2009 Plan’s focus was 
planning for the year 2030. Conditions in the City have not changed significantly since the 2009 Plan was 
completed. Therefore, current planning efforts will focus on identifying City infrastructure and system 
needs for 2040, discussing possible redevelopment areas, and developing a plan that meets Met Council 
requirements. The Metropolitan Council has identified Spring Lake Park as a Developed Community, 
which means that most of the City’s growth will occur through redevelopment. 

  



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 1: Background | 1-4 
 

Figure 1-1: Spring Lake Park Community Designation 

 

Source: Metropolitan Council 



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 1: Background | 1-5 
 

Population Projections 
To assist local communities in preparing their Comprehensive Plan, the Met Council has population, 
household, and employment forecasts for each community. These forecasts, as first presented in the 
City’s System Statement prepared by the Met Council in 2015 (Appendix B) and subsequently amended 
in August 2016, are presented in Table 1-1. 

Table 1-1: Metropolitan Council Forecasts 

 2010 2016 2020 2030 2040 
Population 6,412 6,519 6,700 7,000 7,400 
Households 2,672 2,698 2,880 3,000 3,200 
Employment 3,000 2,879 3,280 3,450 3,600 

Source: 2010 US Census, 2016 American Community Survey, Metropolitan Council 

Demographic Trends 
Demographic trends within a community and the surrounding area are important, as these trends provide 
insight into future community issues and needs. A variety of demographic trends are analyzed below. 
Comparisons are made between the City of Spring Lake Park and Anoka County as a whole to provide a 
point of reference.  

Population and Household Growth 
As demonstrated in Figure 1-2, Spring Lake Park’s population has remained stable in recent decades. 
The City’s population in 1980 was 6,447. The City’s 2006 population was estimated at 6,623. As Figure 1-
2 demonstrates, the City did experience some growth between 1990 and 2000, adding approximately 200 
residents, an increase of nearly 4 percent. This population increase, however, was erased between 2000 
and 2010 due to effects of the “Great Recession” which began December 2007. The City’s population is 
forecasted to increase 13.6 percent by 2040, with a projected 2040 population of 7,400. Given that the 
City is currently fully developed, this growth will most likely be accommodated through infill development 
at higher densities. 

Figure 1-2: Historic and Forecasted Population 

 

Source: Metropolitan Council 



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 1: Background | 1-6 
 

Comparatively, Anoka County’s population has increased substantially in recent decades, as 
demonstrated in Figure 1-3. This growth is forecasted to continue within Anoka County. The significant 
population increases in Anoka County can be explained by the large amount of undeveloped land within 
Anoka County to accommodate population increases. Conversely, because Spring Lake Park has been 
fully developed for several decades, it has not experienced significant growth. 

Figure 1-3: Anoka County and Spring Lake Park Population Comparison 

 

Source: Metropolitan Council, 2010 US Census 

Household trends often have more significant impacts for communities than population trends, as 
household numbers more directly relate to housing and land use needs and development. Household 
trends in the City of Spring Lake Park and Anoka County closely follow population trends in the two 
jurisdictions. As shown below in Figure 1-4, the number of households in Spring Lake Park has increased 
from 1,992 households in 1980 to 2,698 in 2014. The increase in households does not correspond to 
significant increase in population, which can likely be explained by the recent trend of decreasing 
household sizes. By 2040, it is forecasted that the number of households in the City will increase to 
3,200. 

  



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 1: Background | 1-7 
 

Figure 1-4: Actual and Projected Households 

 

Source: Metropolitan Council 

Figure 1-5 demonstrates significant increases in the forecasted number of households for Anoka County 
compared to a relatively small increase for Spring Lake Park. Again, this increase can be attributed to the 
large undeveloped portions of Anoka County available to accommodate additional growth. Because 
Spring Lake Park is fully developed, it will not absorb as large a percentage of the region’s growth as 
other developing communities in Anoka County. 

Figure 1-5: Actual and Projected Households in Anoka County and Spring Lake Park 

 

Source: Metropolitan Council, 2010 US Census 



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 1: Background | 1-8 
 

Age Distribution 
In 2010, the median age of Spring Lake Park’s population was 41.2 years. The City’s historic median age 
trends demonstrate that the City’s population is aging. For example, in 1970, the median age was 20.5. 
The City’s age distribution for the year 2010 is shown below in Figure 1-6. 

Figure 1-6: Population Pyramid for Spring Lake Park, 2010 

 

Source: 2010 US Census 

The City’s age distribution reflects a common trend, with a large percentage of the population between 
the ages of 45 and 64 in the year 2010. This large age group represents the baby boom generation. The 
aging of the baby-boom generation will have a significant effect on the community in upcoming decades 
as the needs of its residents change. 



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 1: Background | 1-9 
 

Racial Diversity 
The racial make-up of Spring Lake Park is presented below in Figure 1-7. The City of Spring Lake Park is 
predominately white (77 percent). The largest minority populations in Spring Lake Park are Hispanic or 
Latino and Asian or Pacific Islander. Approximately 6.0 percent of the population identified as Asian or 
Pacific Islander, and 7.0 percent identified as Hispanic or Latino. Since the 2030 Comprehensive Plan, 
the City has seen an increase in racial diversity, with both racial groups doubling in size.  

Figure 1-7: Racial Diversity in Spring Lake Park 

 

Source: 2015 American Community Survey 

Education 
The educational attainment for the Spring Lake Park population is presented in Figure 1-8. This 
information is relevant for communities, as it affects the local economy and economic development 
opportunities, as well as potential needs of residents. As demonstrated below, most residents in Spring 
Lake Park have obtained a High School Diploma (91.0 percent) and many others have completed some 
college or higher education (58.0 percent). There has been significant growth in the educational 
attainment of the city’s residents, as the number of residents attaining a bachelor’s degree or above has 
increased nearly 32 percent since the 2000 census. 

  



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 1: Background | 1-10 
 

Figure 1-8: Educational Attainment 

 

Source: 2015 American Community Survey 

Economic Overview 
The economic health of a community is important to maintain a high standard of living for existing 
residents and to attract new residents. The following information identifies employment and related 
economic trends.  

Employment 
Historic and forecasted employment data is presented below in Figure 1-9. The number of jobs in Spring 
Lake Park increased steadily between 1970 and 2000, as the number of jobs within the City increased 
from 730 in 1970 to 4,603 in 2000, an increase of 530 percent.  Employment dropped significantly in the 
decade between 2000 and 2010; many of the jobs were lost in the latter part of the decade due to job 
losses from the “Great Recession” which began in December 2007.  Employment growth is expected to 
level off, with a 2040 forecast of 3,600 total jobs. The ratio of jobs to population in Spring Lake Park is 2.3 
residents for every job in the City in 2010.  Major employers in Spring Lake Park include Spring Lake Park 
School District, Aggressive Industries, Rise, and Spring Lake Park Lumber. 

  



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 1: Background | 1-11 
 

Figure 1-9: Employment in Spring Lake Park 

 

Source: Metropolitan Council 

Commute and Transportation 
Figure 1-10 identifies the mode of transportation residents of Spring Lake Park use to access their jobs in 
2000. A majority of residents (78 percent) drove alone to work. Approximately 11 percent of residents 
carpooled, and nearly five percent used public transportation.  The number of residents who worked at 
home has doubled since the 2000 census, reflecting the technological advances that have occurred over 
the past 15 years that allows more residents to work productively from home. 

1-10: Means of Transportation to Work 

 

Source: 2015 American Community Survey 



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 1: Background | 1-12 
 

Despite the large number of jobs within Spring Lake Park, a majority of residents worked outside of the 
City. The average commute time for Spring Lake Park residents in 2015 was 24.2 minutes. It is likely that 
this number has increased significantly in recent years due to increasing congestion in the metropolitan 
area.  

Household Income 
The median household income in 2015 in Spring Lake Party was $51,719, an increase of 10.8% from 
2000. Figure 1-11 presents a comparison of income distribution for the City of Spring Lake Park and the 
Minneapolis-St. Paul metropolitan area.  

Figure 1-11: Household Income Distribution 

 

Source: 2015 American Community Survey 

The median household income for Spring Lake Park is lower than the median household income for Twin 
Cities metro and Anoka County as a whole (Figure 1-12). 

Figure 1-12: Median Household Income Comparison 

 

Source: 2015 American Community Survey 



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 1: Background | 1-13 
 

 

Spring Lake Park’s median income has not kept pace with the growth in median income from either 
Anoka County, the Twin Cities Metro Area and the State of Minnesota.  While the City’s median income 
grew by 10.8 percent since 2000, Anoka County’s grew by 22.7 percent, the Twin Cities Metro Area’s 
grew by 26.7 percent and the State of Minnesota’s grew by 30.5 percent.  The City’s median income can 
have an impact on the local economy and housing and transportation needs for residents. 

 

 

 



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 2: Land Use | 2-1 
 

Chapter 2: Land Use 
 

INTRODUCTION 
The Land Use Chapter identifies the specific land use categories and strategies for future growth and 
redevelopment in Spring Lake Park. The land use categories are the framework upon which the official 
controls, such as the zoning ordinance and subdivision regulations, are based. The plan elements contain 
the regulatory concepts for residential growth, commercial and industrial development and environmental 
protection.  The plan elements and land use planning decisions are based on Goals and Policies 
developed during the Comprehensive Plan update process.   

Land Use Goals and Policies 
The City of Spring Lake Park’s land use goals include the following: 

1. Provide for a mix of residential land uses to provide life-cycle housing for residents.  
2. Provide for industrial uses to sustain and broaden the city’s economic base. 
3. Provide for a mix of commercial uses that provide goods and services to residents and that 

benefit from the city’s proximity to major highways and roads. 
4. Provide for public uses to serve the needs of residents. 
5. Provide for parks that provide recreational opportunities for residents 
6. Support growth consistent with the Metropolitan Council’s regional growth strategy. 
7. Encourage the redevelopment of under-utilized properties in a manner that achieves the highest 

and best use, eliminates blight, and increases the community’s tax base while mitigating impacts 
on surrounding land uses.  

Policies reflect the position of the City on the specific implementation of the Goals listed above. It is the 
policy of the City of Spring Lake Park to: 

1. Establish a future land use plan that will enable the City to meet its population, and household 
and employment forecasts. 

2. Provide for the rezoning of properties currently improved with residential uses but designated for 
commercial or industrial uses by the adopted comprehensive plan update, at such time as 
proposals for industrial or commercial developments are presented to the City for review, with the 
intent that current residential property owners with nonconforming uses shall not be jeopardized 
in the event that a natural or man-made disaster destroys their dwellings. 

3. Work with property owners to create redevelopment standards in existing single-family residential 
neighborhoods that are consistent with neighboring homes.  

4. Continue to provide for zoning restrictions on properties designated for commercial/industrial 
uses so that there will be appropriate buffers between commercial/industrial development and 
adjacent residential uses. 

5. Approve ordinance provisions that are consistent with land use designations established in the 
adopted comprehensive plan update. 

6. Review and amend the City’s Code of Ordinances and Zoning Code as needed to reflect changes 
in the community. 



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 2: Land Use | 2-2 
 

EXISTING LAND USE 
Despite its small size, Spring Lake Park includes a variety of land uses including industrial, commercial, 
public/semi-public, park, and single and multi-family residential. Table 2-1 shows acreages of existing 
land uses. Net acreages (including wetland areas) are included in Table 2-1. It is important to note that all 
acreage calculations have been rounded. Figure 2-1 shows a map of existing land use in Spring Lake 
Park that corresponds with the information presented in Table 2-1.   

As shown in Table 2-1, single family residential is the predominant land use in the City (57 percent). The 
City also includes a manufactured home park, and scattered townhomes, duplexes, and apartment 
buildings. 

Commercial uses are concentrated along major transportation corridors in the City: University Avenue, 
Highway 65, and Highway 10. Commercial businesses consist mainly of retail stores or service providers, 
with a few office buildings. Industrial uses are mainly clustered north of the intersection of Highway 10 
and Highway 65 and at the intersection of Osborne Road and Old Central (CSAH 35). 

Public and Semi-Public Uses, which may consist of government buildings, churches, schools, and 
hospitals and clinics, also make up a large portion of the total land use in the City (10 percent of the total 
net acreage). Significant public uses in the City include the Spring Lake Park High School located just 
south of 81st Ave NE between Able St NE and Highway 65 and the Independent School District 16 
administration offices located just north of 81st Avenue NE and east of Central Ave NE. 

Table 2-1: Existing Land Use Acreages 

Existing Land Use Category Acreage Percent 
Single Family Residential 555.48 57.07% 
Multi-Family Residential (3-6u) 22.30 2.29% 
Multi-Family Residential (6+u) 53.22 5.47% 
Senior/Handicap Residential 12.88 1.32% 
Commercial 78.29 8.04% 
Commercial/Industrial 79.39 8.16% 
Public/Semi-Public 98.24 10.09% 
Park 51.01 5.24% 
Vacant 22.46 2.31% 
TOTAL 973 Acres 100% 

 

  



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 2: Land Use | 2-3 
 

FUTURE LAND USE 
Because Spring Lake Park is fully developed, land use in the City will not change significantly during this 
comprehensive planning period. The City’s future land use categories include the following:  

 

• Low Density Residential: Single-family detached housing, including scattered duplexes at a 
density of 1 to 3 units per acre. 

• Medium Density Residential: Attached housing, including quad homes, townhomes, and row 
homes at a density of 3 to 6 units per acre.  

• High Density Residential: Attached housing, including condominiums and apartment buildings 
at a density of 6 to 25 units per acre. 

• Commercial: Retail sales and services, including professional services, hotels/motels, 
recreational services, and private institutional uses. 

• Industrial: Manufacturing of all kinds, including assembly of products produced elsewhere, 
facilities involved in the movement of goods, warehousing, construction, communications, utilities 
and wholesale sales.  

• Public/Semi-Public: Buildings and adjacent lands of schools (both public and private), hospitals, 
churches, cemeteries, and all facilities of local, state, and federal government.  

• Mixed Use: Areas designated “Mixed Use” are intended to provide flexibility to allow 
complementary uses within a district. Land uses include a mix of medium- and high-density 
residential uses (60 percent of land uses) and commercial uses (40 percent of land uses). Site 
design should focus on walkability, preservation of open space, and access to commercial uses.  

• Parks and Recreation: Park, open space, and recreational facilities owned and operated by 
local, regional, state and federal governments 

• Right-of-Way: Public or private vehicular, transit, and/or pedestrian rights-of-way 
• Lake: Open water 
• Wetland: Wetlands identified in the National Wetland Inventory.  

Acreages for the City’s future land use category are presented below in Table 2-2.  It is important to note 
that acreages are rounded in this table. Future land use in the city is mapped in Figure 2-2.  

Single family residential will remain the predominant land use in Spring Lake Park, occupying 55 percent 
of the City’s total area. The City is planning to accommodate additional Medium Density Residential, 
which is defined as attached housing such as townhomes, at a density of 3 to 6 units per acre. Currently 
the City contains 22 acres of Medium Density Residential, however this is planned to increase slightly to 
23.76 acres by 2040. These additional areas of Medium Density Residential will provide capacity for 
some of the City’s projected 2040 growth. High density residential areas include existing apartment 
buildings, mobile home parks, and senior/housing with services at a density of 6 units per acre or more. 
Because the community of Spring Lake Park already has a vast supply of affordable housing, and 
because the community’s population is aging, redevelopment in the High Density Residential Districts 
should be directed towards accommodating senior residents. Providing senior housing for residents will 
help Spring Lake Park to achieve its goals for the provision of life-cycle housing within the community.  

The future land use plan also identifies additional areas of commercial and industrial areas. Currently, the 
City contains 78 acres of Commercial uses. The 2040 plan identifies 100 acres, with the largest growth in 
commercial areas at the future Hy-Vee site. Similarly, Industrial areas are planned to increase from 79 
acres to 86 acres. Much of this development will occur on land within the City that is currently vacant. The 
provision of additional commercial and industrial lands will provide additional employment opportunities 



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 2: Land Use | 2-4 
 

within the City, enabling the City to meet its projected in employment. Additionally, providing new 
commercial and industrial areas will broaden the City’s tax base, which could potentially reduce the tax 
burden on residential properties. 

A mixed-use area is planned along Highway 65, south of 81st Avenue NE. This area will feature a mixture 
of commercial and medium- and high-density residential uses. It will be an important center for the 
community with easy access to the High School, Highway 65, City Hall, and commercial development 
north of 81st Avenue NE. When developed, this area could accommodate projected household and 
population growth in the city. 

Because the City is fully built-out, land use change will occur through redevelopment. Rather than phase 
growth area, the City, its Council and Planning Commission are prepared to address these changes as 
they arise. Table 2-2 does not identify land use change in 2020 or 2030, as redevelopment will be market-
driven and exact timing is unknown. Areas likely to redevelop are discussed in the next section of this 
chapter: Potential Redevelopment Areas.  

Table 2-2: 2040 Future Land Use 

Future Land Use Category 2040 Acreage Percent 
Single Family Residential 534.83 54.95% 
Multi-Family Residential (3-6u) 23.76 2.44% 
Multi-Family Residential (6+u) 63.54 6.53% 
Mixed Use 13.45 1.38% 
Commercial 100.46 10.32% 
Commercial/Industrial 86.61 8.90% 
Public/Semi-Public 98.24 10.09% 
Park 51.01 5.24% 
TOTAL 973 Acres 100% 

 
Potential Redevelopment Areas 
Through the planning process, the City of Spring Lake Park has identified numerous potential 
redevelopment areas in their community (mapped in Figure 2-3). Potential redevelopment areas have 
been identified because of their unique location in the community, with high visibility and access. These 
areas show potential for change in the city, but redevelopment will only occur if the market conditions are 
right. The City will support existing and future property owners to make sure that new development works 
for all residents and business owners. Each of the five possible areas are described below. 

1. New Mixed-Use District 
This area, bounded by Highway 65 and 81st Avenue NE has been identified for possible mixed-use 
redevelopment. The area is along major corridors in the community, with good access to schools and 
commercial areas. The addition of a Hy-Vee Grocery Store north of the area will provide additional 
opportunity for future commercial and residential activity in the area. 

2. Osborne Road NE at Terrace Road NE 
This area is across Osborne Road from the Mercy Hospital Campus in Fridley. This area includes vacant 
land and single-family homes. While there were previous intentions to use the property for medical office, 
the 2040 Future Land Use Plan identifies the area for commercial redevelopment.  



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 2: Land Use | 2-5 
 

3. Intersection of Highway 65 and Osborne Road NE 
This area is another highly visible and accessible intersection in Spring Lake Park. The area will still be 
guided for commercial use, with the opportunity to redevelop the area as market conditions allow.  

4. Intersection of University Avenue NE and 83rd Ave NE 
This intersection is part of a larger commercial area along the far eastern side of Spring Lake Park, 
bordering Fridley. Like Redevelopment Area #3, the area will still be guided for commercial use, with the 
opportunity to redevelop as market conditions allow. Redevelopment in this area should feature improved 
pedestrian facilities as University Avenue has been a historically dangerous corridor for motorist-
pedestrian vehicle collisions.  

5. 85th Ave NE Public Works Facility 
This area is located at 85th Ave, near the interchange of County Highway 10 and Highway 65. It is highly 
visible, but access is limited due to the interchange and presence of Laddie Lake. The area is currently a 
mix of restaurants and the City’s Public Works garage. As departmental needs grown and change, this 
area may become available for redevelopment or reuse.  

Key Employment Areas 
The City of Spring Lake Park is home to numerous commercial and industrial areas, with opportunities for 
employment. Because many of these areas have already been developed and are operating, there will 
not be a significant change in trips generated or water usage. Two major commercial employment 
changes include the future Hy-Vee Grocery Store at 81st Avenue NE and commercial development of 
vacant land along Osborne Road NE. In commercial and industrial developments, property owners are 
required to complete a site plan review process which will minimize the impacts to utilities and traffic 
generated by the proposed development.   

PROTECTING SPECIAL RESOURCES 
As required by state statute, a municipality’s comprehensive plan must also include strategies for 
protection of special resources, including solar access, historic preservation, aggregate, and natural 
resources. These strategies are discussed below. 

Solar Access 
Minnesota Statutes require an element for the protection and development of access to direct sunlight for 
solar energy systems. The purpose of this legislation is to prevent solar collectors from being shaded by 
adjacent structures or vegetation and to ensure that development decisions do not preclude the possible 
future development and use of solar energy systems. To ensure the availability of solar access, the City 
of Spring Lake Park will, whenever possible, protect access to direct sunlight for solar energy systems on 
principal structures. The City of Spring Lake Park will consider solar access in the review of site plans and 
planning decisions.  

The Metropolitan Council has calculated the gross and rooftop solar potential for the City of Spring Lake 
Park to identify how much electricity could be generated using existing technology. The gross solar 
potential and gross solar rooftop potential are expressed in megawatt hours per year (Mwh/yr), and these 
estimates are based on the solar map for your community. Developed areas with low building heights and 
open space areas have the highest potential for solar development in the City. Many of the developed 
neighborhoods and some natural areas in Spring Lake Park do not have high gross solar potential due to 
existing tree cover. This gross development potential is included in Table 2-3.  



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 2: Land Use | 2-6 
 

Table 2-3: Solar Potential in Spring Lake Park 

 

Source: Metropolitan Council 

Gross solar potential in Spring Lake Park is illustrated in Figure 2-4. 

Historic Preservation 
There are no sites in the city that are listed on the National Register of Historic Places.  The City of Spring 
Lake Park will consider the preservation of historic resources in the review of site plans and other 
planning decisions. The City will, whenever possible, preserve historic structures or landscapes. 

Aggregate Resources 
Metropolitan Council requires that metropolitan area communities identify any regionally significant 
aggregate resources to ensure proper planning for their use. The City of Spring Lake Park is fully 
developed.  Therefore, the City is not impacted by aggregate resources nor are there any opportunities 
for mining within the community.   

Natural Resources 
Vibrant natural amenities help to make a community thrive. Preserving and retaining natural resources for 
the future is an important value in Spring Lake Park and Twin Cities Region. The City is home to 
numerous parks, lakes, and wetlands which provide ecological and recreational benefits to residents. As 
the city is built out, no new parks are planned. However, the City will work to protect existing natural areas 
for future generations. The City will work with the Minnesota Department of Natural Resources, local 
watershed districts, Anoka and Ramsey Counties, and the Metropolitan Council to protect and enhance 
natural resources in the area.  

 

 



Un
ive

rs
ity

 Av
e. 

NE

Te
rra

ce
 R

d. 
NE

Mo
nr

oe
 S

t. N
E

Ab
le 

St
. N

E

Fil
lm

or
e S

t. N
E

Ce
ntr

al 
Av

e. 
NE

Sp
rin

g L
ak

e R
d.

Su
ns

et 
Rd

. N
E

Gr
ov

ela
nd

 R
d.

Sanburnol Dr. NE

81st Ave. NE

83rd Ave. NE 83rd Ave. NE

79th Ave. NE

Osborne Rd. NE

Manor Dr. NE

Ione Ave. NE

5th
 S

t. N
E

81st Ave. NE

Osborne Rd. NE

Lakeview Ln. NE

85th Ave. NE Co. Rd. J W

T.H
. 6

5

Spring Lake

MOUNDS VIEW

BLAINE

FRIDLEY

County Highway 10

Laddie Lake

County Highway 10

2018 Existing Land Use
Spring Lake Park 2040 Comprehensive Plan

´ 800 0 800 Feet
June 4, 2018

V:\1938\active\193803934\GIS\Projects\Existing Land Use.mxd

City Boundary

Single Family Residential

Multi-Family Residential (3-6u)

Multi-Family Residential (6+u)

Senior/Handicapped Residential

Commercial

Commercial/Industrial

Public/Semi-Public

Parks

Vacant

Open Water

NWI Wetland

Note: This is the existing land use in Spring Lake Park 
in 2018. Existing land use may differ from zoning and
future land use. 



Un
ive

rs
ity

 Av
e. 

NE

Te
rra

ce
 R

d. 
NE

Mo
nr

oe
 S

t. N
E

Ab
le 

St
. N

E

Fil
lm

or
e S

t. N
E

Ce
ntr

al 
Av

e. 
NE

Sp
rin

g L
ak

e R
d.

Su
ns

et 
Rd

. N
E

Gr
ov

ela
nd

 R
d.

Sanburnol Dr. NE

81st Ave. NE

83rd Ave. NE 83rd Ave. NE

79th Ave. NE

Osborne Rd. NE

Manor Dr. NE

Ione Ave. NE

5th
 S

t. N
E

81st Ave. NE

Osborne Rd. NE

Lakeview Ln. NE

85th Ave. NE Co. Rd. J W

T.H
. 6

5

Spring Lake

MOUNDS VIEW

BLAINE

FRIDLEY

County Highway 10

Laddie Lake

County Highway 10

2040 Planned Future Land Use
Spring Lake Park 2040 Comprehensive Plan

´ 800 0 800 Feet
May 30, 2018

V:\1938\active\193803934\GIS\Projects\2040 Future Land Use.mxd

Mixed UseCity Boundary

Single Family Residential

Multi-Family Residential (3-6u)

Multi-Family Residential (6+u)

Commercial

Commercial/Industrial

Public/Semi-Public

Parks

Vacant

Open Water

NWI Wetland
Note: This is the legally binding future land use 
plan for the City of Spring Lake Park.



Un
ive

rs
ity

 Av
e. 

NE

Te
rra

ce
 R

d. 
NE

Mo
nr

oe
 S

t. N
E

Ab
le 

St
. N

E

Fil
lm

or
e S

t. N
E

Ce
ntr

al 
Av

e. 
NE

Sp
rin

g L
ak

e R
d.

Su
ns

et 
Rd

. N
E

Gr
ov

ela
nd

 R
d.

Sanburnol Dr. NE

81st Ave. NE

83rd Ave. NE 83rd Ave. NE

79th Ave. NE

Osborne Rd. NE

Manor Dr. NE

Ione Ave. NE

5th
 S

t. N
E

81st Ave. NE

Osborne Rd. NE

Lakeview Ln. NE

85th Ave. NE Co. Rd. J W

T.H
. 6

5

Spring Lake

MOUNDS VIEW

BLAINE

FRIDLEY

County Highway 10

Laddie Lake

County Highway 10

1

2 3

4

5

Potential Redevelopment Areas
Spring Lake Park 2018 Comprehensive Plan

´ 800 0 800 Feet

May 30, 2018

V:\1938\active\193803934\GIS\Projects\Redevelopment.mxd

Mixed UseCity Boundary

Single Family Residential

Multi-Family Residential (3-6u)

Multi-Family Residential (6+u)

Commercial

Commercial/Industrial

Public/Semi-Public

Parks

Vacant

Open Water

NWI Wetland

1. New Mixed Use District
2. Commerical at Osborne Rd and Terrace Rd
3. Intersection of Highway 65 and Osborne Rd NE
4. Commercial along University Ave
5. Intersection of Highway 65 and 85th Ave NE

Potential Redevelopment Areas



Spring
Lake Park

TE
R

R
A

C
E

 R
D

 N
E

AB
LE

 S
T 

N
E

SU
N

S
E

T 
R

D
 N

E

MAPLE AVE NE

C
EN

TR
A

L 
AV

E
 N

E

OSBORNE RD NE

COUNTY ROAD 10

U
N

IV
E

R
S

IT
Y

 A
VE

 N
E

83RD AVE NE

65

High : 1267961

Low : 900001

Solar Potential under 900,000 watt-hours per year

County Boundaries

City and Township Boundaries

Wetlands and Open Water Features

Gross Solar Potential

Source: University of Minnesota U-Spatial Statewide Solar Raster.

ANOKA

DAKOTA

HENNEPIN

RAMSEY

SCOTT

WASHINGTON

CARVER

Extent of Main Map
0 10.5

Miles

1/9/2017

City of Spring Lake Park, Anoka & Ramsey Counties

Gross Solar Potential
(Watt-hours per Year)

MOUNDS VIEW

BLAINE

FRIDLEY

Gross Solar Potential
Spring Lake Park 2040 Comprehensive Plan

´ 800 0 800 Feet

January 30, 2018

V:\1938\active\193803934\GIS\Projects\SolarPotential.mxd

City Boundary
Source: Metropolitan Council

Spring
Lake Park

TE
R

R
A

C
E

R
D

N
E

AB
LE

S
T

N
E

SU
N

S
E

T
R

D
N

E

MAPLE AVE NE

C
EN

TR
A

L
AV

E
N

E

OSBORNE RD NE

COUNTY ROAD 10

U
N

IV
E

R
S

IT
Y

AV
E

N
E

83RD AVE NE

65

High : 1267961

Low : 900001

Solar Potential under 900,000 watt-hours per year

County Boundaries

City and Township Boundaries

Wetlands and Open Water Features

Gross Solar Potential

Source: University of Minnesota U-Spatial Statewide Solar Raster.

ANOKA

DAKOTA

HENNEPIN

RAMSEY

SCOTT

WASHINGTON

CARVER

Extent of Main Map
0 10.5

Miles

1/9/2017

City of Spring Lake Park, Anoka & Ramsey Counties

Gross Solar Potential
(Watt-hours per Year)

Spring
Lake Park

TE
R

R
A

C
E

R
D

N
E

AB
LE

S
T

N
E

SU
N

S
E

T
R

D
N

E

MAPLE AVE NE

C
EN

TR
A

L
AV

E
N

E

OSBORNE RD NE

COUNTY ROAD 10

U
N

IV
E

R
S

IT
Y

AV
E

N
E

83RD AVE NE

65

High : 1267961

Low : 900001

Solar Potential under 900,000 watt-hours per year

County Boundaries

City and Township Boundaries

Wetlands and Open Water Features

Gross Solar Potential

Source: University of Minnesota U-Spatial Statewide Solar Raster.

ANOKA

DAKOTA

HENNEPIN

RAMSEY

SCOTT

WASHINGTON

CARVER

Extent of Main Map
0 10.5

Miles

1/9/2017

City of Spring Lake Park, Anoka & Ramsey Counties

Gross Solar Potential
(Watt-hours per Year)

Spring
Lake Park

TE
R

R
A

C
E

R
D

N
E

AB
LE

S
T

N
E

SU
N

S
E

T
R

D
N

E

MAPLE AVE NE

C
EN

TR
A

L
AV

E
N

E

OSBORNE RD NE

COUNTY ROAD 10

U
N

IV
E

R
S

IT
Y

AV
E

N
E

83RD AVE NE

65

High : 1267961

Low : 900001

Solar Potential under 900,000 watt-hours per year

County Boundaries

City and Township Boundaries

Wetlands and Open Water Features

Gross Solar Potential

Source: University of Minnesota U-Spatial Statewide Solar Raster.

ANOKA

DAKOTA

HENNEPIN

RAMSEY

SCOTT

WASHINGTON

CARVER

Extent of Main Map
0 10.5

Miles

1/9/2017

City of Spring Lake Park, Anoka & Ramsey Counties

Gross Solar Potential
(Watt-hours per Year)



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 3: Housing | 3-1 
 

Chapter 3: Housing 
 

INTRODUCTION 
Housing is an integral component of a city’s landscape. This chapter identifies the City’s goals for its 
future housing stock, an inventory of existing housing in the City, and identifies future housing needs.  

Housing Goals and Policies 
The following goals were developed to guide development of the City’s housing plan: 

1. Facilitate the maintenance and rehabilitation of existing housing, so as to prevent deterioration. 
2. Provide housing for a range of ages and incomes.  

Policies reflect the position of the City on the specific implementation of the Goals. It is the policy of the 
City of Spring Lake Park to: 

1. Provide qualified residents with information about housing maintenance and rehabilitation 
programs administered by Anoka County Housing and Redevelopment Authority and the 
Minnesota Housing Finance Agency. 

2. Pursue the development of new housing to accommodate a range of housing needs, particularly 
executive and senior housing. 

3. Research and engage with experts and the community on best management practices and 
policies regarding accessory dwelling units in residential neighborhoods.  

EXISTING HOUSING STOCK 
Spring Lake Park was developed mainly in the 1950s and 1960s. The rambler comprises a majority of 
homes in the City, a housing style typical of the era in which the City developed. The oldest 
neighborhoods in Spring Lake Park are located north and western parts of the city. Some housing 
developments were completed after 2000, particularly in the southeastern part of the city. Housing age is 
mapped in Figure 3-1. 

Housing Type 
There were 2,782 occupied housing units in Spring Lake Park in the year 2015. Twenty-eight percent of 
these units were rental units. The City includes a variety of housing types, as shown in Figure 3-2. A 
majority of units (60.8 percent) are single family detached units. After single family detached housing 
units, the most common housing type within the City was buildings with 20 or more units, as this housing 
type represents 13.3 percent of all housing units within the City.  

  



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 3: Housing | 3-2 
 

Figure 3-2: Housing Type 

 

Source: American Community Survey, 2015 

Housing Values and Costs 
Owned Housing Units 
The median home value for Spring Lake Park in 2015 was $158,700. In 2000, the median home value in 
Spring Lake Park was $120,000 ($165,168 in 2015 dollars). While the median home value has increased 
32 percent over the past fifteen years, on an inflation adjusted basis, the median home value has 
declined by 3.9 percent.  Home values increased at a faster rate in Anoka County as whole, with an 
increase from $131,000 in 2000 ($180,300 in 2015 dollars) to $187,600 in 2015. The Anoka County 2015 
median home value of $187,600 is higher than Spring Lake Park’s median value. This discrepancy may in 
part be attributed to the large number of new homes built in Anoka County in recent years relative to the 
City of Spring Lake Park.  

With this inflation-adjusted decline in median home value over the past year, a significant amount of the 
housing in Spring Lake Park qualifies as affordable housing.  Out of the 2,782 housing units in the City, 
nearly 95% of the units are affordable to households making 80% or less of area median income. 
Housing values are mapped in Figure 3-3.  

As stated earlier in this section, the median home value in Spring Lake Park is $158,700, which is slightly 
more affordable than the Anoka County median value of $193,200 and also more affordable than the 
Twin Cities Metropolitan Area median of $212,600. Spring Lake Park’s housing values are very similar to 
neighboring communities. Table 3-1 includes median home values in nearby communities. 

Table 3-1: Median Housing Values in and around Mendota Heights 

Community Median Housing Value 
Spring Lake Park $158,700 
Mounds View $168,600 
Fridley $166,600 
Anoka County $193,200 
Twin Cities Metropolitan Area $212,600 



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 3: Housing | 3-3 
 

Source: American Community Survey, 2016 

Rental Housing Units 
The median rent in Spring Lake Park is $905 per month, which is lower than the Twin Cities Metropolitan 
Area ($916) and Anoka County ($1,000). Compared to other communities in the area, Spring Lake Park’s 
median rent is approximately the same or slightly higher. As the city sees housing redevelopment 
opportunities, such as the Dominium apartment development Legends of Spring Lake Park, median 
monthly rent may change. Table 3-2 includes median monthly rents in nearby communities. 

Table 3-2: Median Rent in and around Mendota Heights 

Community Median Monthly Rent 
Spring Lake Park $905 
Mounds View $869 
Fridley $904 
Anoka County $1,000 
Twin Cities Metropolitan Area $916 

Source: American Community Survey, 2016 

 

HOUSING AFFORDABILITY 
As part of the 2040 Housing Policy Plan, the Metropolitan Council estimates that approximately 37,000 
additional low- and moderate-income households needing affordable housing units will be needed in the 
region between 2020-2030. The Metropolitan Council will be working with communities to allocate these 
units across the region.   

Affordable Housing Stock in Spring Lake Park 
The Metropolitan Council defines home ownership affordability as $85,500 for households making less 
than 30 percent Area Median Income (AMI), $153,000 for households making 31-50 percent AMI, and 
$240,500 for households making 51-80 percent AMI. In Spring Lake Park, the median home value is 
$160,400, indicating that much of the City’s housing stock is affordable at the 51-80 percent AMI level. 
Housing affordability is discussed further later in this chapter. 

These housing stock characteristics in Spring Lake Park are summarized in Table 3-3. 

Table 3-3: Affordable Housing Stock in Spring Lake Park 

Total Number of 
Units 

2,782 

Tenure Owner Occupied Renter Occupied 
1,905 877 

Number of 
Affordable Units 

At or below 30% 
AMI 

31-50% AMI 51-80% AMI 

234 1,037 1,405 
Number of 
Publicly 
Subsidized 
Units 

Senior Housing People with 
Disabilities 

All other 
publicly 
subsidized 
units 

60 0 38 
Source: Metropolitan Council 



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 3: Housing | 3-4 
 

Cost Burdened Households 
Many residents in communities across the Twin Cities experience challenges affording their housing 
costs. The Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) defines housing to be affordable if the 
residents do not pay more than 30 percent of their income towards housing costs. Housing costs can 
include rent or mortgage payments, utility bills, HOA fees or other fees associated with living in the home. 
Residents who pay more than 30 percent are considered “Cost-burdened”. In Spring Lake Park, over six 
hundred households (23.8 percent of households) are considered to be cost-burdened. Table 3-4 
describes the cost burdened households by median income level. 

Table 3-4: Housing Cost Burdened Households 

Household Income Level Number of Cost-burdened Households 
At or below 30% AMI 222 
31 to 50% AMI 274 
51 to 80% AMI 140 
Total Households 636 

Source: Metropolitan Council 

Housing Projections and Need 
Although the City of Spring Lake Park is relatively built out, it will still need to accommodate for new 
residents of all socioeconomic backgrounds. The Metropolitan Council requires that Spring Lake Park 
must supply 29 new units of affordable housing (at or below 80 percent AMI) by 2040. The units must be 
affordable at different levels, described below in Table 3-5. 

Table 3-5: Affordable Unit Allocations for Spring Lake Park 

Household Income Level Number of Units 
At or below 30% AMI 14 
31 to 50% AMI 6 
51 to 80% AMI 9 
Total Households 29 

Source: Metropolitan Council 

A majority of housing within the Spring Lake Park is already considered affordable, however the City has 
guided several areas for Medium and High Density Residential on its 2040 land use plan, which will 
provide additional opportunities for affordable housing in the community. The 29 allocated affordable 
housing units could also be accounted for in the proposed mixed-use district along MN 65. 

While the City is doing their part in creating a regulatory land use plan to plan for areas of density greater 
than 6 units per acre, where most affordable housing will occur, barriers to development of affordable 
housing still exist in the region as well as in Spring Lake Park.  Some of these barriers are beyond the 
City’s control including: 

• Steady increases in land prices. 
• Increase in construction costs. When combined with land prices, it becomes more difficult to 

provide affordable units through new construction. 
• Physical limitations of land due to wetlands, poor access, poor soils that would increase the cost 

of land development or construction thus making it more difficult to build affordable units. 
• Limited amount of remaining developable land. 
• State, county and local tax structures. 



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 3: Housing | 3-5 
 

HOUSING ACTION PLAN 
The following Housing Action Plan outlines efforts Spring Lake Park will explore to maintain existing 
housing and create new affordable housing in the next ten years:  

Regulatory 
• Provide sufficient land guided at densities greater than 6 units per acre, within redevelopment 

areas close to jobs and transit. 

Housing Maintenance 
• The City will strengthen its efforts to actively promote first-time homebuyer programs to assist 

residents entering the market.   
• The City will also market housing rehabilitation programs available through the County and State.  

This can be done via the City’s website, newsletter and other methods.   

Enforcement 
• Evaluate existing housing stock in order to target code enforcement and rehabilitation assistance. 
• The City will actively enforce the Housing Maintenance Code.  

Neighborhood Development 
• Continue City programs promoting pride in the community.  
• Partner with Anoka County to implement affordable housing programs at all three affordability 

levels in Spring Lake Park. 

Rental Housing 
• Continue to utilize Spring Lake Park’s existing rental licensing program to promote safe rental 

housing.   



Un
ive

rs
ity

 Av
e. 

NE

Te
rra

ce
 R

d. 
NE

Mo
nr

oe
 S

t. N
E

Ab
le 

St
. N

E

Fil
lm

or
e S

t. N
E

Ce
ntr

al 
Av

e. 
NE

Sp
rin

g L
ak

e R
d.

Su
ns

et 
Rd

. N
E

Gr
ov

ela
nd

 R
d.

Sanburnol Dr. NE

81st Ave. NE

83rd Ave. NE 83rd Ave. NE

79th Ave. NE

Osborne Rd. NE

Manor Dr. NE

Ione Ave. NE

5th
 S

t. N
E

81st Ave. NE

Osborne Rd. NE

Lakeview Ln. NE

85th Ave. NE Co. Rd. J W

T.H
. 6

5

Spring Lake

MOUNDS VIEW

BLAINE

FRIDLEY

County Highway 10

Laddie Lake

County Highway 10

Housing Age
Spring Lake Park 2040 Comprehensive Plan

´ 800 0 800 Feet

May 16, 2018

V:\1938\active\193803934\GIS\Projects\Housing Age.mxd

Built before 1955
Built Between 1955 and 1970
Built Between 1970 and 1985
Built Between 1985 and 2000
Built after 2000

City Boundary
Open Water
NWI Wetland
Freshwater Forested/Shrub Wetland
Freshwater Pond



Un
ive

rs
ity

 Av
e. 

NE

Te
rra

ce
 R

d. 
NE

Mo
nr

oe
 S

t. N
E

Ab
le 

St
. N

E

Fil
lm

or
e S

t. N
E

Ce
ntr

al 
Av

e. 
NE

Sp
rin

g L
ak

e R
d.

Su
ns

et 
Rd

. N
E

Gr
ov

ela
nd

 R
d.

Sanburnol Dr. NE

81st Ave. NE

83rd Ave. NE 83rd Ave. NE

79th Ave. NE

Osborne Rd. NE

Manor Dr. NE

Ione Ave. NE

5th
 S

t. N
E

81st Ave. NE

Osborne Rd. NE

Lakeview Ln. NE

85th Ave. NE Co. Rd. J W

T.H
. 6

5

Spring Lake

MOUNDS VIEW

BLAINE

FRIDLEY

County Highway 10

Laddie Lake

County Highway 10

Owner Occupied Single Family Residential Housing Values 
Spring Lake Park 2040 Comprehensive Plan

´ 800 0 800 Feet

April 13, 2018

V:\1938\active\193803934\GIS\Projects\Housing Value.mxd

* Metropolitan Council Affordable Housing Guideline:
 2016 Home Ownership

Household Income	  Affordable Home Price
80% AMI ($65,700)	    $235,000
60% AMI ($51,480)	    $180,500
50% AMI ($42,900)	    $148,000
30% AMI ($25,750)	      $82,500

Estimated Total Market Value:
Up to $148,000*
$148,000 to $180,500*
$180,500 to $235,000*
Above $235,000

City Boundary
Open Water
NWI Wetland
Freshwater Forested/Shrub Wetland

Freshwater Pond



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 4: Parks, Trails, and Community Facilities | 4-1 
 

Chapter 4: Parks, Trails, and 
Community Facilities 
 

INTRODUCTION 
Parks, trails, and open space provide many important benefits for cities and their residents. In addition to 
providing recreational opportunities for residents, these facilities also contribute to the health of a 
community by providing active living opportunities for residents. Parks may also foster a sense of 
community by providing gathering space and programs for residents.  

Parks, Trails, and Community Facilities Goals and Policies 
The following goals were developed to guide development of the City’s parks, trails, and community 
facilities plan: 

1. Maintain and provide adequate funding for the existing park and trail network in Spring Lake Park. 
2. Complete sidewalk and trail gaps to establish a connected network for pedestrian and bicycle 

facilities in the city. 

Policies reflect the position of the City on the specific implementation of the Goals. It is the policy of the 
City of Spring Lake Park to: 

1. Complete renovations of park buildings to meet the needs of park users and visitors. 
2. Explore the renovation or relocation of City Hall to better meet the needs of constituents.  
3. Work with Anoka County to rebuild Osborne Trail in areas needing pavement maintenance.  
4. Collaborate with other agencies and partners to implement new regional or multi-jurisdictional 

trails in Spring Lake Park and neighboring communities.  

EXISTING PARKS AND TRAIL NETWORK 
Parks 
The City of Spring Lake Park includes six City parks, as illustrated in Figure 4-1. These six parks and their 
amenities are listed in the following sections. There are no regional parks in the city.  

Able Park 
Able Park is located at 8200 Able Street NE. This park is approximately 6.7 acres, and includes 
playgrounds, a picnic shelter, a basketball court, volleyball courts, and athletic fields. In the winter 
months, the park features a hockey rink. 

Triangle Park 
Triangle Park is located at the intersection of Able Street and Manor Drive. This 2.5-acre park includes a 
pond, walking path, and picnic tables. 



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 4: Parks, Trails, and Community Facilities | 4-2 
 

Lakeside Lions Park 
Lakeside Lions Park is located at 79th Avenue and Pleasant View Drive. This 11.8-acre park is jointly 
owned with the City of Mounds View, and includes a swimming beach and beach house, picnic shelter 
and equipment, playground equipment, athletic fields, volleyball courts, and a walking path.  

Sanburnol Park 
Sanburnol Park is located at 520 Sanburnol Drive. This 5.7-acre park includes playground equipment and 
athletic fields. 

Terrace Park 
Terrace Park is located at 79th Avenue and Terrace Road. This 10.7-acre facility includes playground 
equipment, picnic shelters, and athletic fields. The park also features a basketball court, tennis courts, 
and a skate park. In the winter months, the park features a hockey rink. 

Westwood Park 
Westwood Park is located at 8450 Westwood Road. This 1.8-acre park includes playground equipment, a 
picnic shelter, and one athletic field.  

Trails 
The City of Spring Lake Park has two major bicycle trail facilities and two pedestrian trail facilities within 
the community, providing opportunities for recreation and transportation to walk and bike in Spring Lake 
Park. These trails include: 

• A paved, east-west trail along Osborne Road from University Avenue NE to the city limits, 
continuing into Mounds View 

• A paved north-south trail from 81st Ave NE to Osborne Road, along Old Central Avenue. 
• A pedestrian bridge at 80th Avenue NE, crossing Highway 65 to Spring Lake Park High School 
• Internal, paved recreational pedestrian trails at Lakeside Lions Park. 

There are currently no regional trails in Spring Lake Park. 

Existing trails are mapped in Figure 4-1. 

Sidewalks 
There are also numerous concrete sidewalks for use by pedestrians along several streets within the City, 
as well as a pedestrian bridge over Highway 65 near 80th Ave. Pedestrian facilities and safety are 
discussed further in Chapter 5: Transportation.  

  



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 4: Parks, Trails, and Community Facilities | 4-3 
 

PLANNED PARKS AND TRAILS 
Planned Parks 
The City of Spring Lake Park is entirely built out and there are no new planned parks in the city. 

Planned Trails 
Local Trails 
The City has planned one bicycle lane along 81st Avenue NE, from County Highway 10 to Old Central 
Avenue. This bike lane will be added by restriping 81st Ave NE from a 4-lane to a 3-lane road. There are 
no other planned on- or off-street bicycle facilities in the city. 

Regional Trails 
The Metropolitan Council has identified a regional bicycle trail network (RBTN) through their 2040 
Transportation Policy Plan. The RBTN identifies possible trail alignments and search areas for future 
regional trails. The Met Council has identified one regional trail opportunity in Spring Lake Park: a north-
south trail along County Highway 10 and Highway 65. The Met Council has also identified two corridor 
search areas, through the northwestern part of the city (Tier 2) and at the southwest corner of the city 
(Tier 1). 

Planned bicycle facilities and RBTN alignments are mapped in Figure 4-2.  

COMMUNITY FACILITIES 
Community facilities include public and semi-public uses, such as schools, medical facilities, and 
government buildings. In general, the City’s existing facilities are in good condition and adequate for the 
City’s needs. However, space is limited at City Hall, which houses the City's administrative offices and 
police department. The City Hall is also used regularly for City Council, Planning and Zoning Commission, 
and Parks and Recreation Commission meetings; community education classes; and community 
meetings. Space at City Hall is very limited, as there are few available conference rooms for staff 
meetings or adequate space for larger community meetings. Expansion or relocation of the existing City 
Hall will likely be necessary to accommodate additional space needs.  

In addition to the physical facilities discussed above, the City provides a number of services and activities 
to promote the health, safety, and welfare of its residents. The City provides recycling services to 
residents through curb pick-up and recycling days. The City also cooperates with Anoka County to 
encourage residents to utilize the Anoka County Household Waste Facility (3230 101st Ave NE, Blaine). 
The City communicates with residents through a variety of means, including the Spring Lake Park News 
in the Park quarterly newsletter, city website, and cable access channel. Other facilities that serve Spring 
Lake Park residents include county libraries, medical clinics and hospital, a community college (in Coon 
Rapids), a technical school (in Anoka), transit facilities including local and commuter bus routes and the 
Northstar commuter train station in Fridley, public safety, and senior services. Although not all of these 
facilities are located within the City boundaries, these facilities are provided directly to residents of Spring 
Lake Park from the City or through the City’s collaboration with other agencies.  

Existing community facilities are illustrated in Figure 4-1.  

 



Un
ive

rs
ity

 Av
e. 

NE

Te
rra

ce
 R

d. 
NE

Mo
nr

oe
 S

t. N
E

Ab
le 

St
. N

E

Fil
lm

or
e S

t. N
E

Ce
ntr

al 
Av

e. 
NE

Sp
rin

g L
ak

e R
d.

Su
ns

et 
Rd

. N
E

Gr
ov

ela
nd

 R
d.

Sanburnol Dr. NE

81st Ave. NE

83rd Ave. NE 83rd Ave. NE

79th Ave. NE

Osborne Rd. NE

Manor Dr. NE

Ione Ave. NE

5th
 S

t. N
E

81st Ave. NE

Osborne Rd. NE

Lakeview Ln. NE

85th Ave. NE Co. Rd. J W

T.H
. 6

5

Spring Lake

MOUNDS VIEW

BLAINE

FRIDLEY

County Highway 10

Laddie Lake

County Highway 10

")852

")25

Spring Lake Park
High School

SLP
City Hall

Lakeside
Lions
Park

Westwood
Park

Sanburnol
Park

Park
Terrace

Elem

Terrace
Park

Able
Park

Triangle
Park

Early 
Childhood 

School

MnDOT Garage

 Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community

Existing Parks, Trails, and Community Facilities
Spring Lake Park 2040 Comprehensive Plan

´ 800 0 800 Feet

May 23, 2018

V:\1938\active\193803934\GIS\Projects\CommunityFacilities.mxd

Existing Trail

Parks

Public/Semi-Public

City Boundary

Open Water

NWI Wetland



Un
ive

rs
ity

 Av
e. 

NE

Te
rra

ce
 R

d. 
NE

Mo
nr

oe
 S

t. N
E

Ab
le 

St
. N

E

Fil
lm

or
e S

t. N
E

Ce
ntr

al 
Av

e. 
NE

Sp
rin

g L
ak

e R
d.

Su
ns

et 
Rd

. N
E

Gr
ov

ela
nd

 R
d.

Sanburnol Dr. NE

81st Ave. NE

83rd Ave. NE 83rd Ave. NE

79th Ave. NE

Osborne Rd. NE

Manor Dr. NE

Ione Ave. NE

5th
 S

t. N
E

81st Ave. NE

Osborne Rd. NE

Lakeview Ln. NE

85th Ave. NE Co. Rd. J W

T.H
. 6

5

Spring Lake

MOUNDS VIEW

BLAINE

FRIDLEY

County Highway 10

Laddie Lake

County Highway 10

Sanburnol
Park

Triangle
Park

Able
Park

Park
Terrace

Elem

Spring Lake Park
High School

Terrace
Park

Lakeside
Lions
Park

SLP
Community

Center

Westwood
Park

Early
Childhood

School

MnDOT Garage

Planned Parks and Recreation
Spring Lake Park 2040 Comprehensive Plan

´ 800 0 800 Feet

May 23, 2018

V:\1938\active\193803934\GIS\Projects\Planned Parks and Recreation.mxd

Existing Trail

Planned Bike Lane

Metropolitan Council Tier 1 RBTN Alignment

Parks

Public/Semi-Public

Metropolitan Council Tier 1 RBTN Corridor

Metropolitan Council Tier 2 RBTN Corridor

City Boundary

Open Water

NWI Wetland



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 5: Transportation | 5-1 
 

Chapter 5: Transportation 
 

INTRODUCTION 
The purpose of the Transportation Chapter is to identify and analyze all components of a community’s 
transportation network. This includes roads, transit, aviation, non-motorized vehicles (i.e. bicycle and 
pedestrian), freight and goods movement, and supporting land use. The plan develops strategies, goals, 
and policies for the development of a multi-modal transportation system. 

Transportation Goals and Policies 
The City of Spring Lake Park’s goals for transportation include the following: 

1. Support a multi-modal transportation system that meets the needs of residents. 
2. Provide for a transportation system that supports and revitalizes the economic base. 
3. Support a transportation system consistent with the goals and policies of the Metropolitan Council 

Regional Development Framework. 

Policies reflect the position of the City on the specific implementation of the Goals. The City of Spring 
Lake Park’s transportation policies include the following: 

1. Continue regular maintenance of existing City streets, including reconstruction of older streets as 
necessary. 

2. Continue to collaborate with Anoka County on any future County-initiated improvements to 
County Road 10. 

3. Establish a program of access management in connection with the redevelopment of commercial 
land industrial properties. 

4. Require that a developer of any proposed structure 200 feet above ground level notify the Federal 
Aviation Administration and the Minnesota Department of Transportation (Aeronautics) of the 
potential to affect navigable airspace. 

5. Cooperate with the Metropolitan Council and the Metropolitan Airports Commission on potential 
development within the influence area of the Anoka County-Blaine Airport. 

6. Reclassify the functional classification of 81st Avenue to a Collector. 
7. Cooperate with Metro Transit and Anoka County to accommodate Spring Lake Park’s transit 

needs. 
8. Limit access on Principal and A-Minor Arterials to improve the safety and capacity of these 

roadways. 

ROADWAY SYSTEM 
Functional Classification 
The roadway system represents a significant component of a city’s overall transportation network. 
Roadways are classified according to their function in the roadway network. This functional classification 
system creates a hierarchy of roads for the orderly movement of traffic from local residences and 
businesses to the highway system. A roadway functional classification is important, as it will determine a 
road’s design features such as width, speed limit, intersection control, and access.  



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 5: Transportation | 5-2 
 

Roads are classified according to their degree of access and mobility:  

• Principal arterials are at the top of the roadway system hierarchy. The primary purpose of 
principal arterials is to provide for mobility. Therefore, access on these roadways is limited. These 
routes are intended for travel from one region to another. Ideally, these roadways are spaced 
every two to three miles in developed areas. Trunk Highway 65 is an example of a principal 
arterial in Spring Lake Park.  

• Minor arterials are directly below principal arterials in the roadway network hierarchy. These 
roadways also maintain a focus on mobility, but mobility is sacrificed somewhat to allow for more 
access. These routes provide for travel access a region and between principal arterials. Minor 
arterials are ideally spaced every one-half to one mile in developed areas. University Avenue (TH 
47) is an example of a minor arterial in Spring Lake Park.  

• Collectors provide a balance between mobility and access. Residences and businesses often 
have direct access to these roads. Collectors also collect traffic from local roads and distribute it 
onto higher order roadways. Collectors also provide for shorter trips within a small area. Ideally, 
collectors are spaced every ¼ to ¾ mile in developed areas. An example of a collector roadway 
in Spring Lake Park is Able Street. 

• Local streets fall at the bottom of the roadway hierarchy, as their primary function is to provide for 
local access to homes and businesses. Local roads are intended for short trips. Typically, they 
connect to other local streets and to collector roadways. An example of a local street in Spring 
Lake Park is Filmore Street NE.  

The functional classification of Spring Lake Park roadways is presented in Figure 5-1. 

Capacity 
Existing (2017) traffic volumes provided by the Metropolitan Council are shown on Figure 5-1 as well. The 
City currently experiences congestion at the intersection of 81st Ave and TH 65 and at the intersection of 
81st Ave and TH 47. This congestion is mainly caused by the timing of the signals at these intersections. 
No additional lanes are planned at either of these intersections. 

Safety 
Anoka County 2040 Transportation Plan 
In the 2040 Transportation Plan Update, Anoka County identifies vehicle crashes from 2006 to 2015. In 
this 10-year period, there were 165 fatal crashes and 33,989 total crashes in the county. Of fatal and 
serious crashes, distracted driving accounted for approximately 20 percent and intoxicated driving 
accounted for approximately 18 percent.  

Between 2011 and 2015, there was one fatal crash at Pleasant View Drive and County Road 10 and 
three serious crashes at Osborne Road and MN 65, 81st Ave and MN 65, and at Pleasant View Drive and 
County Road 10. 

Pedestrian Safety Along University Ave NE 
In the past few years, there have been numerous pedestrian fatalities along University Avenue NE, 
bordering Spring Lake Park and Fridley. High speed traffic, wide roadways and limited crossing facilities 
make the area dangerous for people walking or running in the area. Some of the recent incidents along 
the corridor include: 

• Pedestrian fatality, University Avenue and 81st Street, October 14, 2016 
• Pedestrian fatality, University Avenue and 57th Avenue, January 16, 2017 



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 5: Transportation | 5-3 
 

• Pedestrian fatality, University Avenue and Osborne Road, March 1, 2018 

The Minnesota Department of Transportation is currently working with local jurisdictions to understand the 
issues for pedestrians and motorists along the corridor.  

The City will continue to cooperate with the appropriate agencies on safety issues that arise. 

Access Management 
Access management is a critical component of a safe and efficient roadway system. By limiting access 
points, safety and mobility are increased on roadways. It is also important to balance mobility needs with 
local access needs. As discussed above, access is limited on higher mobility roadways such as Principal 
Arterials, while local streets provide increased access and decreased mobility.  

Anoka County has adopted access spacing guidelines to address access, safety, and mobility issues on 
roadways within the County. These guidelines for urban roadways are presented below in Table 5-1.  

Table 5-1: Anoka County Access Spacing Guidelines 

Functional 
Classification 

Route Speed 
(MPH) 

Intersection 
(Primary Full 
Movement) 

Spacing 
(Conditional 
Secondary) 

Signal 
Spacing 

Private 
Access 

Principal 
Arterials <40 1/8 mile 300-600 ft ¼ mile Subject to 

Conditions 
A Minor 
Arterials <40 1/8 mile 300-600 ft ¼ mile Subject to 

Conditions 
B Minor 
Arterials <40 1/8 mile 300-600 ft ¼ mile Subject to 

Conditions 

Collectors <40 1/8 mile 300-600 ft 1/8 mile Subject to 
Conditions 

Local <40 1/8 mile 300-600 ft 1/8 mile Subject to 
Conditions 

Source: Anoka County 

Pedestrian and Bicycle System 
The City of Spring Lake Park includes two bicycle trails. The first runs east to west along Osborne Road 
(CSAH 8/CR 108) across the length of the City. The second trail runs along Central Avenue from the 
Fridley City boundary to 81st Avenue NE. The City maintains both trails. There are also numerous 
concrete sidewalks for use by pedestrians along several streets within the City, as well as a pedestrian 
bridge over Highway 65 near 80th Ave.  

The City does not include any regional trails. 

Additional information and maps about trails in Spring Lake Park can be found in Chapter 4: Parks, Trails, 
and Community Facilities. 

Transit 
Transit is an important aspect of a multi-modal transportation system. The Metropolitan Council has 
identified the City of Spring Lake Park as “Market Area II.” Service options within Market Area II include 
express routes, urban radial, suburban local, circulators, and general public dial-a-ride. Anoka County 
Volunteer Transportation and Anoka County Traveler Dial-A-Ride provide paratransit service in the 
County.  



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 5: Transportation | 5-4 
 

The City of Spring Lake Park is currently served by several bus routes, all of which are operated by Metro 
Transit (Figure 5-2): 

• Route 10 is a local service bus route on Central Avenue (TH 65) between Blaine and downtown 
Minneapolis. In Spring Lake Park, this route runs detours off Central Avenue to Osborne Road 
NE and Monroe St NE. 

• Route 59 is a limited stop bus route that runs along Central Avenue (TH 65) between Coon 
Rapids and downtown Minneapolis.  In Spring Lake Park, this route provides service on 81st 
Avenue and Osborne Road.  

• Route 824 is limited stop bus route that runs along University Avenue (TH 47) between Coon 
Rapids and downtown Minneapolis. In Spring Lake Park, this route provides service on Osborne 
Road and Monroe Street. 

• Route 854 is an express bus route that runs along University Avenue (TH 47) between Coon 
Rapids and downtown Minneapolis. 

There no regional transit corridors planned for the City of Spring Lake Park. There are no planned 
dedicated busways or MnPASS lanes in Spring Lake Park. However, the City will work with the 
Metropolitan Council to determine future transit services consistent with the city’s transit market area.  

There are no park-and-ride facilities located within Spring Lake Park. A facility is located nearby at the 
Northtown Mall Transit Center, which is just north of Spring Lake Park’s north boundary at University 
Avenue and Sanburnol Drive. 

Aviation 
There are no existing or planned aviation facilities within Spring Lake Park. However, the City is within the 
Anoka County-Blaine Airport (ANE) Influence Area. Therefore, it may be affected by planning 
considerations such as airport zoning, environmental mitigation, airport development and economic 
impacts, ground access needs, infrastructure requirements, and general land use compatibility. 
Development of an airspace zoning ordinance to meet the State standards is the responsibility of a joint 
airport/community zoning board.  

In 2010, the Metropolitan Airports Commission (MAC) adopted a comprehensive plan for the Anoka 
County – Blaine Airport. The Plan serves as a framework for future development of the airport and 
compatibility with surrounding communities. The Plan also includes forecasts for air travel out of the 
airport with flight operations falling from 86,838 annual flights in 2007 to 79,560 flights in 2025. As such, 
the airport is estimated to be under capacity and no expansions are planned.  

The City will notify the Federal Aviation Administration of any alteration exceeding 200 feet above ground 
level or other construction or alteration as required by Federal Regulation Title 14, Part 77. 

Freight 
While there are some industrial and auto-oriented uses in Spring Lake Park, major trucking or freight 
infrastructure is limited. Heave commercial average annual daily traffic is mapped in Figure 5-1. There are 
no railroads, rail terminals, or barge terminals in Spring Lake Park. 

TRAFFIC ANALYSIS ZONES 
The City of Spring Lake Park falls entirely within TAZs 250, 251, 252, and 253. A small portion of the City 
is located partially within TAZ 248 and 249. All TAZs are illustrated in Figure 5-3. Population, household, 
and employment forecasts are allocated to the appropriate TAZs in Table 5-2. These projections assume 



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 5: Transportation | 5-5 
 

linear growth within the time period between 2014 and 2040. The City of Spring Lake Park is entirely built-
out with very few vacant parcels. New population growth in each of the six intersecting TAZs will be the 
result of residential and mixed-use redevelopment. More information about demographics and population 
growth and future land use changes are included in Chapters 1 and 2, respectively.  

Table 5-2: Population, Household, and Employment Projections by TAZ 

Population 
TAZ 2014 2020 2030 2040 
248 911 971 1,070 1,170 
249 1,025 1,107 1,243 1,380 
250 1,395 1,435 1,503 1,570 
251 630 667 728 790 
252 1,999 2,020 2,055 2,090 
253 2,012 2,090 2,220 2,350 

Total 7,972 8,290 8,820 9,350 
Households 

TAZ 2014 2020 2030 2040 
248 345 374 422 470 
249 467 498 549 600 
250 564 586 623 660 
251 279 293 317 340 
252 756 787 838 890 
253 841 878 939 1,000 

Total 3,252 3,415 3,688 3,960 
Employment 

TAZ 2014 2020 2030 2040 
248 608 615 628 640 
249 758 862 1036 1,210 
250 1,193 1257 1363 1,470 
251 198 226 273 320 
252 200 232 286 340 
253 246 312 421 530 

TOTAL 3,203 3,505 4,007 4,510 
Source: Metropolitan Council 

PLANNED IMPROVEMENTS 
The City of Spring Lake Park will continue to cooperate with neighboring municipalities, Anoka and 
Ramsey Counties, and Mn/DOT to address access and mobility on local, county, and state roadways.  

• There are no planned improvements to principle arterials in Spring Lake Park under the TPP 
2040 current revenue scenario. 

• There are no planned interchange improvements in Spring Lake Park. 

Within the next 10-year planning period, the City will evaluate the condition of Garfield Street NE and 
Hayes Street NE for possible resurfacing. With the development of Hy-Vee, intersection improvements 
and signal timing will be implemented at 81st and MN 65. The City will continue its 7-year crack seal and 
seal coat maintenance program, as well as repairing any problem areas that arise. 



Principal Arterial

A-Minor Reliever

A-Minor Expander

Other Arterial

Major Collector

Local Street

City Boundary

Open Water

NWI Wetland

Freshwater Forested/Shrub Wetland

Freshwater Pond

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

Un
ive

rs
ity

 Av
e. 

NE

Te
rra

ce
 R

d. 
NE

Mo
nr

oe
 S

t. N
E

Ab
le 

St
. N

E

Fil
lm

or
e S

t. N
E

Ce
ntr

al 
Av

e. 
NE

Sp
rin

g L
ak

e R
d.

Su
ns

et 
Rd

. N
E

Gr
ov

ela
nd

 R
d.

Sanburnol Dr. NE

81st Ave. NE

83rd Ave. NE 83rd Ave. NE

79th Ave. NE

Osborne Rd. NE

Manor Dr. NE

Ione Ave. NE

5th
 S

t. N
E

81st Ave. NE

Osborne Rd. NE

Lakeview Ln. NE

85th Ave. NE Co. Rd. J W

T.H
. 6

5

Spring Lake

MOUNDS VIEW

BLAINE

FRIDLEY

County Highway 10

Laddie Lake

County Highway 10

570

1,700

1,850

630

540

550

3,850

3,100

8,900

2,000

1,500

5,300

1,100

1,950

1,800
2,300

6,400

1,500 3,700

1,400

2,050

3,850

1,800

2,100 2,000

6,700 7,600
1,550

5,300

31,000

37,500

20,900

20,900

41,000

Transportation Classification 
Spring Lake Park 2040 Comprehensive Plan

´ 800 0 800 Feet

April 13, 2018

V:\1938\active\193803934\GIS\Projects\Trans Class.mxd

! Most Current Traffic Volume (AADT)

! Most Current Truck Traffic Volume (HCAADT)

climit

1,230
1,230



%L%L

%L%L %L
%L %L

%L
%L%L

%L
%L

%L %L

%L

%L%L

%L

%L
%L

%L%L%L
%L %L %L%L

%L
%L%L

%L
%L

%L
%L %L

%L
%L

%L
%L%L

%L
%L

%L
%L%L %L

%L

%L

%L
%L

%L

%L

%L
%L

%L%L

%L
%L

%L%L

%L

%L
%L

%L %L
%L

%L
%L%L%L%L

%L
%L

%L
%L

%L
%L%L %L

%L

%L
%L

%L

%L

%L%L

%L

%L

%L%L

%L

%L

%L

%L

%L
%L

%L

%L%L

%L

%L
%L

%L

%L
%L

%L
%L

%L
%L

%L
%L

%L
%L

%L

%L

%L
%L

%L

%L
%L

%L
%L

%L%L

%L%L

%L
%L%L

%L
%L

%L%L %L%L
%L%L%L

%L%L %L %L%L
%L

%L
%L

%L

%L%L%L%L

%L

%L

%L

%L
%L

%L%L

%L%L

%L
%L

%L
%L

%L

%L

%L

%L
%L

%L

%L

%L
%L

%L
%L

%L

%L

%L

%L

%L

%L

Un
ive

rs
ity

 Av
e. 

NE

Te
rra

ce
 R

d. 
NE

Mo
nr

oe
 S

t. N
E

Ab
le 

St
. N

E

Fil
lm

or
e S

t. N
E

Ce
ntr

al 
Av

e. 
NE

Sp
rin

g L
ak

e R
d.

Su
ns

et 
Rd

. N
E

Gr
ov

ela
nd

 R
d.

Sanburnol Dr. NE

81st Ave. NE

83rd Ave. NE 83rd Ave. NE

79th Ave. NE

Osborne Rd. NE

Manor Dr. NE

Ione Ave. NE

5th
 S

t. N
E

81st Ave. NE

Osborne Rd. NE

Lakeview Ln. NE

85th Ave. NE Co. Rd. J W

T.H
. 6

5

Spring Lake

MOUNDS VIEW

BLAINE

FRIDLEY

County Highway 10

Laddie Lake

County Highway 10

")852

")854

")10

")824

")59

")860

")25

")25

")824

")10

")10

")25

")825

")955

")831")860")10

Transit System
Spring Lake Park 2040 Comprehensive Plan

´ 800 0 800 Feet

May 16, 2018

V:\1938\active\193803934\GIS\Projects\Transit System.mxd

City Boundary

Open Water

NWI Wetland

852

854

860

955

831

Bus Route #:

10

25

59

824

825

%L Bus Stops



Un
ive

rs
ity

 Av
e. 

NE

Te
rra

ce
 R

d. 
NE

Mo
nr

oe
 S

t. N
E

Ab
le 

St
. N

E

Fil
lm

or
e S

t. N
E

Ce
ntr

al 
Av

e. 
NE

Sp
rin

g L
ak

e R
d.

Su
ns

et 
Rd

. N
E

Gr
ov

ela
nd

 R
d.

Sanburnol Dr. NE

81st Ave. NE

83rd Ave. NE 83rd Ave. NE

79th Ave. NE

Osborne Rd. NE

Manor Dr. NE

Ione Ave. NE

5th
 S

t. N
E

81st Ave. NE

Osborne Rd. NE

Lakeview Ln. NE

85th Ave. NE Co. Rd. J W

T.H
. 6

5

Spring Lake

MOUNDS VIEW

BLAINE

FRIDLEY

County Highway 10

Laddie Lake

County Highway 10

250
253

252 1692

254

249

251

248

1703

257 258

246

1704

244 247

256
Traffic Analysis Zones (TAZ) 
Spring Lake Park 2040 Comprehensive Plan

´ 800 0 800 Feet

May 16, 2018

V:\1938\active\193803934\GIS\Projects\TAZ.mxd

City Boundary

TAZ Boundary

Open Water

NWI Wetland

Freshwater Forested/Shrub Wetland

Freshwater Pond



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 6: Water Resources | 6-1 
 

Chapter 6: Water 
Resources 
 

INTRODUCTION 
The Public Facilities Chapter provides information on the City’s Sanitary Sewer, Water Supply, Local 
Surface Water Management Plans, and community facilities. These plans are currently being revised to 
meet new Metropolitan Council and watershed district standards. Full versions of these water resource 
plans will be included as appendices to the final comprehensive plan.  

Water Resources Goals and Policies 
The City of Spring Lake Park recognizes the importance of water resources for human and ecological 
services. The following goals and policies address surface water, sanitary sewer, and water supply.  

1. Provide adequate sewer, water, and stormwater management to serve existing and new 
development. 

2. Construct and operate existing and new public facilities to protect the health, safety, and welfare 
of residents. 

3. Develop a plan consistent with the Metropolitan Council’s Regional Development Framework. 

Policies and Action Steps: 

1. Prohibit the installation of new on-site sewer systems.  
2. Encourage new development that is consistent with the capacity of the sanitary sewer and water 

systems.  
3. Continue the City program to require polyvinyl chloride sewer pipes for all new development and 

redevelopment, as well as for all repairs.  
4. Continue implementation of Best Management Practices of City MS4 permit administered by the 

MPCA, including adoption of necessary ordinances.  
5. Cooperate with the Minnesota Department of Natural Resources-Ground Level Monitoring 

Program to monitor groundwater levels and establish municipal baseline groundwater level 
information. 

SANITARY SEWER 
The Met Council has prepared forecasts for sewer flow to assist communities in their comprehensive 
planning efforts. The sewer forecasts for Spring Lake Park are presented in Table 6-1. 

Table 6-1: Sewer Forecasts 

 2010 2020 2030 2040 
Sewered Population 6,412 6,700 7,000 7,400 
Sewered Households 2,672 2,880 3,000 3,200 
Sewered Employment 3,000 3,280 3,450 3,600 
Average Annual Wastewater Flow (MGD) 0.55 0.54 0.56 0.58 
Allowable Peak Hourly Flow (MGD) 2.24 2.21 2.21  



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 6: Water Resources | 6-2 
 

 

The City of Spring Lake Park is served by the Met Council Interceptor 4-SL-534. Currently this interceptor 
has an available capacity of 0.79 mgd to provide for the City’s long-term sewer and water needs. The Met 
Council has not scheduled any improvements for this interceptor within the Plan’s 2040 timeframe. A 
small area of the City near Laddie Lake is served by Interceptor 4-NS-522 in Blaine. 

Spring Lake Park’s wastewater flow is treated at the Metropolitan Waste Water Treatment Plant in St. 
Paul. Several improvements are planned for this facility through 2030 2040 to provide for additional plant 
capacity and to meet required permit standards. 

The Met Council has established I/I goals for all communities discharging wastewater to the Metropolitan 
Disposal System.  Spring Lake Park’s I/I goal is 2.46, which is equal to the allowable peak hourly flow 
presented in Table 1 for 2010. According to the Met Council’s metering program, the City’s 2004 annual 
average flow was 0.66. To achieve its I/I goal established by the Met Council, the City will adopt an 
ordinance to prohibit the connection of sump pumps. Additionally, portions of the City’s sewer are 
televised regularly in a rotation. During these inspections, services exhibiting constant clear water flows 
are noted and investigated for possible illegal connections. The City also requires that all new sewer 
construction and all repairs of existing sewers be constructed with polyvinyl chloride pipes.  

As demonstrated in Table 5, the community’s sewer flow is anticipated to increase slightly by the year 
2040. However, the City does not anticipate any capacity issues with the existing sewer system.  

SURFACE WATER MANAGEMENT 
Spring Lake Park is within the Rice Creek Watershed District and the Coon Creek Watershed District. 
After watershed district plans are developed and approved, local communities are required to complete a 
local surface water management plan. The City of Spring Lake Park is currently updating their local 
surface water management plan to reflect the needs of the watershed districts and the Metropolitan 
Council. A full copy of the plan will be included in the appendices of this comprehensive plan upon 
completion. 

WATER SUPPLY PLANNING 
The City of Spring Lake Park is served by four wells, with two treatment facilities. The City completed a 
Wellhead Protection Plan, which was approved by the Minnesota Department of Health in May 2018. The 
Plan establishes Drinking Water Supply Management Areas (DWSMA) around city wells and establishes 
goals for the protection of its water supply over the next ten years. The City also participates in the Anoka 
County Municipal Wellhead Planning Group, a join power organization that promotes cooperation and 
coordination among area cities to protect the area’s water supply.  

In lieu of completing a Water Supply Plan Chapter, the City has completed the DNR’s Emergency and 
Conservation Water form, which fulfills the requirements of the Water Supply Chapter. This form is 
included in the appendices of this plan for reference (Appendix X). 



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 7: Implementation | 7-1 

 

Chapter 7: Implementation 
 

INTRODUCTION 
The implementation of the Comprehensive Plan does not end with adoption.  The City's official controls, 

the zoning ordinance and subdivision regulations, will ensure day to day monitoring and enforcement of 

the policy plan.  The regulatory provisions of both ordinances, as revised, will provide a means of 

managing development in the City in a manner consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.  The City's 

Capital Improvements Program will enable needed improvements identified in the plan to be programmed 

and implemented in a timely and cost-effective manner. 

OFFICIAL CONTROLS 
As part of the planning process, the City will evaluate its land use controls and consider amendments to 

existing ordinances to eliminate inconsistencies with the Comprehensive Plan, enhance performance 

standards, protect public and private investments, and to conform to mandatory State and Federal 

regulations.  

The plan identifies a number of specific changes to the zoning ordinance and subdivision regulations 

which need to be considered by the City.  Some of these changes include: 

• Changes in the zoning map to make the zoning of property consistent with the policies and 

provisions of this plan. The City’s existing zoning map is presented in Figure 7-1.  

o Completed by September 2019. 

• Completion of a local surface water management plan, which is currently underway. 

o Completed by December 2018. 

• Adopt an ordinance prohibiting the connection of sump pumps to the sanitary sewer system. 

o Completed by December 2019. 

Zoning Map and Categories 
Zoning is the primary regulatory tool used by local governments to implement their comprehensive plan. 

In 2015, the City of Spring Lake Park revised their entire zoning code to reflect changes in the community 

and provide a more concise and user-friendly code document. The code consists of the official zoning 

map and the supporting ordinance text. The official map divides the community into a series of zoning 

districts and the text describes regulations for the use of land within these districts. Zoning districts in 

Spring Lake Park are mapped in Figure 7-1. Zoning districts are listed in the following section. Full 

regulations for all districts can be found in the City’s Code of Ordinances §153. 

Residence Districts 
R-1, single-family residence district: This district is intended to preserve, create, and enhance areas of 

exclusive single-family development where that development fits the Comprehensive Plan, and where 

two-family dwellings may be allowed by conditional use permit. 

R-2, medium density residence district: This district is intended to provide for medium density 

residential use which stresses individually owned dwelling units to provide a transition between lower and 

higher densities and between incompatible land uses. 



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 7: Implementation | 7-2 

 

R-3, multiple-family residence district: This district is intended to provide a residence area in which 

multiple dwellings not exceeding six units per building may be allowed, except by conditional use permit. 

Non-residence Districts 
C-1, shopping center commercial district: This district is intended to provide a district which may be 

applied to land in single ownership or unified control for the purpose of developing a planned business 

center with a unified and organized arrangement of buildings and service facilities at key locations which 

are suitable for the use and which are centrally located within the residential area they are intended to 

serve. 

C-2, neighborhood and service commercial district: This district is intended for the convenience of 

persons residing in nearby residential areas and is limited in its function to accommodating the basic day-

to-day shopping needs of the typical family. It is also intended as a business district which may be located 

in separate areas adjacent to shopping centers and thus help to keep the basic retail areas compact and 

convenient, and in other separate areas to provide a district which may be located in close proximity to a 

major thoroughfare or highway in order that highway service types of land use can be provided. 

C-3, office commercial district: This district is intended to provide a district which is related to and may 

reasonably adjoin high density or other residential districts for the location and development of 

administrative office buildings, medical uses, and related office uses which are subject to more restrictive 

controls. 

I-1, light industrial district: The light industrial district is established to provide employment opportunities 

and to group industrial and certain uses in locations accessible to highways for the safe and effective 

movement of raw materials, finished products, and employees. 

PLAN AMENDMENT PROCESS 
The Comprehensive Plan is intended to be general and flexible; however, formal amendments to the Plan 

will be required when land use elements are revised. Periodically, the City should undertake a formal 

review of the plan to determine if amendments are needed to address changing factors or events in the 

community.  While a plan amendment can be initiated at any time, the City should carefully consider the 

implications of the proposed changes before their adoption. 

When considering amendments to this plan, the City will use the following procedure: 

1. Amendments may be initiated by land owners, land developers, the Planning and Zoning 

Commission or the City Council. 

2. The Planning and Zoning Commission will direct the City staff to prepare a thorough analysis of 

the proposed amendment. 

3. The City staff will present to the Planning and Zoning Commission a report analyzing the 

proposed changes, including their findings and recommendations regarding the proposed plan 

amendment. 

4. The Planning and Zoning Commission will decide whether or not to proceed with the proposed 

amendment.  If a decision to proceed is made, a formal public hearing will be held on the 

proposed amendment. 

5. Following the public hearing the Planning and Zoning Commission will make a recommendation 

to the City Council. 

6. The City Council will receive the recommendation from the Planning and Zoning Commission and 

make a final decision on whether to adopt the amendment. 



City of Spring Lake Park | 2040 Comprehensive Plan 

Chapter 7: Implementation | 7-3 

 

All amendments to the plan must be submitted to the Metropolitan Council for review prior to 

implementation. 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
The City will annually update a five-year capital improvements program which identifies major capital 

expenditures consistent with the Plan. The program should include public and private investments in 

infrastructure, park and trail development expenditures, infrastructure repair and replacement, building 

maintenance and repair and other planned capital expenditures. Like the Comprehensive Plan, the capital 

improvements planning process is ongoing and subject to modification, as appropriate. Spring Lake 

Park’s Capital Improvement Program is included in Appendix X, for reference.  



The information on this map has been compiled
by Stantec staff from a variety of sources and is
subject to change without notice. Stantec makes
no representations or warranties, express or implied,
as to accuracy, completeness,timeliness, or rights
to the use of such information.

?àA@

?àA@

£¤10

£¤10

LADDIE
LAKE

SPRING
LAKE

C o
tt a

ge
w o

od
Te

r N
E

Osborne Rd NE

Ma
dis

on
S t

N E

83rd Ave NE

83rd Ave NE

Dee Pl NE

Maple St NE

County Road 10 Service Rd

Sanburnol Dr NE

80th Ave NE

Ol
d

Ce
nt

ra
lA

ve
NE

78th Ave NE

5th
St

NE

82nd Ave NE

Park Ter NE

Bu
ch

an
an

S t
N E

79th Ave NE

80th Ave NE

Lund Ave NE

Manor Dr NE

Ce
nt

er
Dr

NE

Holland La NE
Ma

dis
on

St
NE

Cl
e v

el a
n d

S t
N E

83rd Ave NE

Ce
ntr

al
Av

e N
E

Wyldwood La NE

82nd Ave NE

78th Street Ave NE

6th
St

N E

Ballantyne Ln NE

Po
lk

St
NE

T a
ylo

r S
t N

E

Ty
ler

St
NE

J e
ffe

rs
on

S t
NE

W
as

h in
g t

o n
S t

N E

Ja
ck

so
n S

tN
E

Va
n

Bu
re

n
St

NE

Qu
inc

yS
tN

E

85th Ave NE

Pl
ea

sa
nt

Vi
ew

Dr

Sp
rin

g
La

ke
Pa

rk
Rd

Westby Dr NE

Pi
er

ce
St

NE

La
ke

wo
od

Dr
NE

Tr
un

kHighway 65
S e

rv
ice

R d
E

Mi
dd

let
ow

n R
d N

E

La
dd

ie
Rd

Maple St NE

Manor Dr NE

Ione Ave NE

Un
ive

rs
ity

Av
e

NE

84th Ave NE

Ty
ler

St
NE

Lund Ave NE

Rosedale Rd NE

M c
kin

ley
S t

NE

HayesSt NE

Lakeview LaNE

Su
ns

et
Rd

NE

Ab
le

St
NE

Ab
le

St
NE

Te
rra

ce
Rd

NE

Plaza
Blvd NE

Mo
nr

oe
S t

N E

6th
St

NE

Un
iv e

r s
it y

Av
en

ue
Se

rv
ice

R d

Fil
lm

or
e S

t N
E

T a yl or S tNE

Ar
th

ur
St

NE

Garfield St NE

County Rd 10Service Dr

W
es

tw
oo

dR
d

NE

Elm Dr NE

OFFICIAL ZONING MAP
Spring Lake Park, MN

City Boundary

Open Water

NWI Wetlands

R-1  Single Family
Residential
R-2  Medium Density
Residential
R-3  Multiple Family
Residential
C-1  Shopping Center
Commercial
C-2  Neighborhood &
Service Center
Commercial
C-3  Office Commercial

I-1  Light Industrial

P  Public

V:\1938\active\193803266\GIS\Projects\Zoning draft 11X17.mxd

May 23,  2018

($$¯
0 700 1,400

Feet





































 

 

 

 
City of Spring Lake Park  

Engineer’s Project Status Report 
 

 

To: Council Members and Staff  Re: Status Report for 7.2.18 Meeting       
 

From:  Phil Gravel     File No.: R-18GEN  
 

 

Note:  Updated information is shown in italics.    

 
MS4 Permit (193802936). 

Annual Report has been submitted (was due June 30th).  The Annual Public Meeting was held on 
June 18th.  Required Annual Training will be completed in the fall.      

 
Surface Water Management Plan (193803949). 
Detailed storm water modeling has been completed.  We are currently using the storm water model 
to evaluate proposed conditions to see what can be done to reduce flooding in these areas.  A 
summary report will be presented this fall with the updated LSWMP.      

 
2017 Sanitary Sewer Lining Project (193803782). 
This project included sanitary sewer lining in the neighborhood east of Able Street and north of 81st Avenue.  
The Contractor was Visu-Sewer.  Terry Randall is working on one-year televising and follow-up items.                           

 
2018 Sanitary Sewer Lining Project (193804547). 
This project includes sewer lining in the northeast area of the city.  A Preconstruction Conference 
is scheduled for July 9th.  Initial sewer cleaning and televising will start in late July.                                

 
2017-2018 Street Seal Coat Project (193803783). 
This 2-year project includes street maintenance in the neighborhood north of 81st Ave. and west of Monroe 
St. (2017) and in the neighborhood east of Monroe St., south of 81st St. and west of TH 65 (2018).  Terry 
Randall will coordinate 2018 work this summer.   The contractor has completed the crack filling work.  Seal 
coat placement was scheduled to be completed the week of June 25th.  The first sweeping will take place 7-
10 days after the seal coat rock was placed.  Resident information is on the city’s website.     

 
Wells 4 and 5 (193804554): Plans and specifications are nearly complete.  Will present bid 
information to the city council in August.  The timeline for construction work on the wells will be late 
summer for Well 4 and autumn for Well 5.    
 
Water Supply Plan: Terry Randall, Nancy Kelm, and Mark Janovec from Stantec worked together to 
compile additional information requested from the Minnesota Department of Natural Resources (DNR) for the 
city’s Water Supply Plan.  DNR and City Council have approved the plan.      

 
Wellhead Protection Plan: Well survey responses have been reviewed and compiled. The results 
of the survey, along with other wellhead protection activities in the past two years, will be included 
in a Plan Evaluation Report which will be provided to the Minnesota Department of Health (MDH). 
A letter requesting the 10-year extension to the Plan has been sent to MDH, MDH has requested 
some additional documentation. 
 
Buchanan Street Parking Lot:  Staff is working on the idea of possibly construction a small 
parking lot on the city owned lot on Buchanan Street south of 81st Avenue.  A cost estimate has 
been prepared.  The Administrator will discuss options with the commercial property on 
Buchannan.  Quotes are being obtained.  

 



 Spring Lake Park – Engineers Report   -   Page 2 

 

 
 
Bituminous Trail Maintenance:  Ongoing bituminous trail maintenance for the trails on Osborne 
and Central Avenue is being completed.  The public works staff has removed grass along the 
edges of the trails and swept them.  A construction quote for s surface slurry seal was awarded at 
the council meeting on June 18th.   The slurry seal work will start later this summer.    
 
 
Anoka County 2018 Paving Project:  Anoka County will be completing a mill and overlay of 
County Road 10 a shorth distance each side of the Highway 65 bridge this summer.  The County 
does not have a dedicated webpage for the overlay program.  However, the following webpage will 
have weekly updates on the overlay projects:    
http://www.anokacounty.us/1578/Construction-Weekly 
 
The County’s construction and detours map is kept up to date with projects on roads. 
http://gis.anokacountymn.gov/highway/ 
 
Terry Randall attended the Preconstruction Conference for the project on June 4th.   
 
 
Cellular Antenna Installations on Water Towers:   
 

 T-Mobile on Able Street tower.  Final construction acceptance letter was sent on May 2, 
2018.  This project can be closed out once final invoices clear.     

 

 Verizon on Arthur Street tower.  This is a new installation.  Final comments on the 
Construction Drawings were sent to the applicant on April 24th (CDs are approved).  Lease 
issues are still being discussed.   

 

 AT&T on Arthur Street tower. This is a replacement/modification project.  Initial comments 
on the Construction Drawings were sent to the applicant on May 22nd.  A second comment 
letter was sent on June 12, 2018.  Revised CDs were received on June 22, 2018 and are 
presently being reviewed.  Lease is being reviewed.    

 
 
 
Other issues/projects.    
 
Dominium Project.  A site walkthrough inspection will be completed this month the review 
remaining site improvement work.   
 
Hy-Vee Project.  No news.     
 
Public Storage Project.  Plat information has been submitted and is ready for approval.       
 
Interstate Plaza Project (7700 Hwy 65 NE).  No news.     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
... 
 
Feel free to contact Harlan Olson, Phil Carlson, Jim Engfer, Mark Rolfs, Marc Janovec, Peter Allen, or me if you have any questions or 
require any additional information.   

http://www.anokacounty.us/1578/Construction-Weekly
http://gis.anokacountymn.gov/highway/


 
CORRESPONDENCE 

  



 







North Metro Telecommunications Commission 

Meeting Talking Points 
June 20, 2018 

 

 The North Metro TV summer schedule is busy with City celebrations, parades, 

and USA Cup Soccer.  NMTV will be partnering with the National Sports Center 

to provide TV and web coverage of games and events.  

 The new Ham Lake HD system has had the bugs worked out and is performing 

well.  The video is a vast improvement.  Circle Pines is ready to select a vendor 

for their upgrade, and Centerville is moving forward with bids.  Lexington has 

received an estimate for an upgrade.  Once all seven Cities have been upgraded to 

HD, NMTV will obtain an HD channel from Comcast for the Cities.   

 

 The recommended 2019 budget was reviewed.  Goals for 2019 include expanding 

accessibility of City channels by providing live streaming of channels 24-hours-a 

day, transitioning all Cities to HD, obtaining an HD City channel from Comcast, 

creating OTT apps for community programming, and continuing with the 

franchise renewal.  Operating expenses were budgeted at $13,525 more than the 

2018 budget. There were reductions in anticipated administrative expenses, but 

increases in building and personnel costs.  The personnel budget includes an up to 

2.75% COLA increase and step increases for three employees.  Benefits were 

budgeted at $1,145 per employee, based on benefits packages provided by Cities 

to their employees.  Capital expenses are budgeted at $450,615.   A little over half 

of the capital budget is dedicated to the bond payment of $230,475, for the HD 

upgrade.  Other capital expenditures recommended for 2019 include streaming 

servers and Makito X transport equipment for Cities, maintenance and support 

contracts for equipment, a wireless microphone system for Studio A, two tripod 

systems for the truck, and some field equipment.  Annual computer upgrades, 

software licenses, and music licenses are also included in the capital budget, along 

with money for some parking lot repairs.  Franchise fees returned to Cities have 

been budgeted at $400,000.  This is the same amount as last year.  The motion to 

approve the budget was passed unanimously.  Budgets have been forwarded to the 

City Administrators.     

 The Commission moved to increase the 2019 PEG fee by 7 cents.   

 
 

PLEASE encourage your council members to call me if they have any questions you can’t answer.  I 

would be happy to answer any questions they may have.  Heidi Arnson at NMTV.  Direct line is 

763-231-2801.  Email is harnson@northmetrotv.com.   






	Blank Page
	Consent - Resolution 18-18 Authorizing 2017 Fund Transfers.pdf
	Blank Page

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Ord & Reso - Resolution 18-20 Approving Driveway Variance at 733 81st Ave NE.pdf
	Blank Page

	Ord & Reso - Resolution 18-21 Approving Preliminary and Final Plat for Public Storage SLP First Addition .pdf
	Blank Page

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Ord & Reso - Resolution 18-22 Approving Circulation of Comprehensive Plan Update.pdf
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	Blank Page



